¢ Title: Adult Care & Health Committee
&l@l& Date: 20 January 2014
Brighton & Hove | Time: 4.00pm
City Council Venue Council Chamber, Hove Town Hall

Councillors: | Jarrett (Chair), Phillips (Deputy Chair),

K Norman (Opposition Spokesperson),
Meadows (Opposition Spokesperson),
Barnett, Bowden, Marsh, Mears, Summers
and Wakefield

Co-optees | Geraldine Hoban (Clinical Commissioning
Group), Dr George Mack (Clinical
Commissioning Group) and Janice Robinson
(Clinical Commissioning Group)

Non-voting | Jane Viner (Healthwatch)
Co-optee

Contact: Caroline De Marco

Democratic Services Officer

01273 291063
Caroline.demarco@brighton-hove.gcsx.gov.uk

The Town Hall has facilities for wheelchair users,
including lifts and toilets

&
An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for anyone
~7 wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter and infra red
Q?I hearing aids are available for use during the meeting. If
you require any further information or assistance, please
contact the receptionist on arrival.

FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are
instructed to do so, you must leave the building by the
nearest available exit. You will be directed to the nearest
exit by council staff. It is vital that you follow their
instructions:

¢ You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not
use the lifts;

* Do not stop to collect personal belongings;

¢« Once you are outside, please do not wait
immediately next to the building, but move some
distance away and await further instructions; and

* Do not re-enter the building until told that it is safe
to do so.

Adult Care & Health Committee

Democratic Services democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk



Democratic Services: Adult & Care & Health Committee

o

Officers

Executive Councillor Senior Democratic
Director for Adult Jarrett Lawyer Services
Social Services Chair Officer
/7 T
Councillor
Councillor K Norman
Phillips Opposition
Deputy Chair Spokesperson
Councillor
Bowden Councillor
/ Barnett \
Councillor Councillor
Wakefield Mears
Councillor
Geraldine Meadows
Hoban Group
CCG Spokesperson
Janice Councillor
Robinson Marsh
CCG
Dr. George Councillor /
Mack Summers
CCG /
Officer ‘
Jane Viner
/ Healthwatch
\ 7
Officer Officer
Public Councillor
Speaker Speaking

Public Seating

|




ADULT CARE & HEALTH COMMITTEE

AGENDA

PART ONE Page

44. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS
(a) Declaration of Substitutes: Where Councillors are unable to attend a

meeting, a substitute Member from the same Political Group may
attend, speak and vote in their place for that meeting.

(b) Declarations of Interest:

(a) Disclosable pecuniary interests not registered on the register of
interests;

(b) Any other interests required to be registered under the local
code;

(c) Any other general interest as a result of which a decision on the
matter might reasonably be regarded as affecting you or a
partner more than a majority of other people or businesses in
the ward/s affected by the decision.

In each case, you need to declare

(i) the item on the agenda the interest relates to;

(i) the nature of the interest; and

(i) whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest or some other
interest.

If unsure, Members should seek advice from the committee lawyer

or administrator preferably before the meeting.

(c) Exclusion of Press and Public: To consider whether, in view of the
nature of the business to be transacted, or the nature of the
proceedings, the press and public should be excluded from the
meeting when any of the following items are under consideration.
NOTE: Any item appearing in Part Two of the Agenda states in its
heading the category under which the information disclosed in the
report is exempt from disclosure and therefore not available to the
public.

A list and description of the exempt categories is available for public

inspection at Brighton and Hove Town Halls.

45. MINUTES 1-12
To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 25 November 2013 (copy
attached).

Contact Officer:  Caroline De Marco Tel: 01273 291063

46. CHAIR'S COMMUNICATIONS



ADULT CARE & HEALTH COMMITTEE

47.

48.

49.

50.

51.

Healthwatch Representation.

CALL OVER

(a) Items 50 to 57 will be read out at the meeting and Members invited
to reserve the items for consideration.

(b)  Those items not reserved will be taken as having been received
and the reports’ recommendations agreed.

PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT

To consider the following matters raised by members of the public:

(a) Petitions: to receive any petitions presented to the full council or
at the meeting itself;

(b) Written Questions: to receive any questions submitted by the
due date of 12 noon on the 13 January 2014,

(c) Deputations: to receive any deputations submitted by the due
date of 12 noon on the 13 January 2014.

MEMBER INVOLVEMENT

To consider the following matters raised by councillors:

(a) Petitions: to receive any petitions submitted to the full Council or
at the meeting itself;

(b) Written Questions: to consider any written questions;

(c) Letters: to consider any letters;

(d) Notices of Motion: to consider any Notices of Motion referred
from Council or submitted directly to the Committee.

PART A -JOINTLY COMMISSIONED - (SECTION 75) BUSINESS
FINANCE REPORT AT TBM7

Report of Executive Director of Finance & Resources and Chief Finance
Officer, Brighton and Hove CCG (copy attached),

Contact Officer:  Anne Silley, Michael Tel: 01273 295065, Tel:
Schofield 01273 574743
Ward Affected: All Wards

COMMUNITY SHORT TERM SERVICES - AN UPDATE

Report of Chief Operating Officer, Brighton and Hove Clinical
Commissioning Group and the Executive Director of Adult Services (copy
attached).

Contact Officer: Gill Brooks Tel: 01273 574635
Ward Affected: All Wards

13 - 48

49 - 60



ADULT CARE & HEALTH COMMITTEE

52.

53.

54.

55.

56.

57.

58.

INTEGRATED COMMUNITY EQUIPMENT SERVICE

Report of the Executive Director Adult Services (copy attached).

Contact Officer:  Anne Richardson-Locke Tel: 01273 290379
Ward Affected: All Wards

COMMISSIONING GRANTS PROSPECTUS

Report of the Executive Director Adult Services and the Operating Officer,
Brighton and Hove Clinical Commissioning Group (copy attached).

Contact Officer:  Debbie Greening Tel: 29-5739
Ward Affected: All Wards

PART B - COUNCIL BUSINESS
ADULT SOCIAL CARE CHARGING POLICY

Report of Executive Director Adult Services (copy attached).

Contact Officer:  Angie Emerson Tel: 01273 295666
Ward Affected: All Wards

FEE LEVEL FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE SERVICES 2014-15

Report of the Executive Director Adult Services (copy attached).

Contact Officer:  Jane MacDonald, Mark Tel: 29-5038, Tel: 01273
Hendriks 293071

Ward Affected: All Wards

DAY ACTIVITIES REVIEW UPDATE

Report of Executive Director of Adult Services (copy attached).

Contact Officer:  Anne Richardson-Locke, Tel: 01273 290379, Tel:
Naomi Cox 29-5813
Ward Affected: All Wards

DEVELOPMENT OF SHARED LIVES

Report of Executive Director of Adult Services

Contact Officer: David Pena-Charlon Tel: 01273-296810
Ward Affected: All Wards

ITEMS REFERRED FOR COUNCIL
To consider items to be submitted to the 30 January 2014
Council meeting for information.

In accordance with Procedure Rule 24.3a, the Committee may determine
that any item is to be included in its report to Council. In addition, any

61 - 66

67 -74

75-90

91 -98

99 -110

111 -118



ADULT CARE & HEALTH COMMITTEE

Group may specify one further item to be included by notifying the Chief
Executive no later than 10am on the eighth working day before the
Council meeting at which the report is to be made, or if the Committee
meeting take place after this deadline, immediately at the conclusion of
the Committee meeting

The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public. Provision is also made
on the agendas for public questions to committees and details of how questions can be
raised can be found on the website and/or on agendas for the meetings.

The closing date for receipt of public questions and deputations for the next meeting is 12
noon on the fifth working day before the meeting.

Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date.

Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on
disc, or translated into any other language as requested.

For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact Caroline De Marco,
(01273 291063, email Caroline.demarco@brighton-hove.gcsx.gov.uk) or email
democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk

Date of Publication - Friday, 10 January 2014




ADULT CARE & HEALTH Agenda Item 45
COMMITTEE Brighton & Hove City Council

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL
ADULT CARE & HEALTH COMMITTEE
4.00pm 25 NOVEMBER 2013
COUNCIL CHAMBER, HOVE TOWN HALL
MINUTES
Present: Councillor Jarrett (Chair)
Councillors Phillips (Deputy Chair), K Norman (Opposition
Spokesperson), Meadows (Opposition Spokesperson), Barnett,
Bowden, Jones, Marsh, Mears and Summers
Co-optees: Geraldine Hoban (Clinical Commissioning Group), Dr George Mack
(Clinical Commissioning Group) and Janice Robinson (Clinical

Commissioning Group)

Non-voting co-optee: Jane Viner (Healthwatch)

PART ONE

30. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS

30A Declarations of Substitute Members

30.1  Councillor Jones declared that he was substituting for Councillor Wakefield.

30B Declarations of Interests

30.2 Councillor Jones declared an interest in ltem 42 — Extra Care Housing — Brooke Mead,
as he is Deputy Chair of the Planning Committee. He informed the Committee that he
would leave the meeting room during this item.

30C Exclusion of the Press and Public

30.3 In accordance with section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, it was
considered whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during
the consideration of any items contained in the agenda, having regard to the nature of
the business to be transacted and the nature of the proceedings and the likelihood as to
whether, if members of the press and public were present, there would be disclosure to

them of confidential or exempt information as defined in section 100l (1) of the said Act.

30.4 RESOLVED - That the press and public be not excluded from the meeting.



ADULT CARE & HEALTH COMMITTEE 25 NOVEMBER

31.

31.1

31.2

31.3

32.

32.1

33.

33.1

34.

34.1

35.

35.1

36.

36.1

36.2

2013

MINUTES

Councillor Mears referred to paragraph 17.4 in relation to allocations policy. Councillor
Mears had received a written response to her query after the last meeting but
considered that the response was not clear. The Executive Director confirmed that
there was a Housing Allocation Policy. Councillor Mears replied that she wanted
confirmation in writing that the council was only operating one housing allocation policy.

The Executive Director referred to paragraph 22.7 in relation to the numbers of people in
residential care. She reported that with regard to long term care admissions, for people
with mental health aged 18-64 there were 8 long term admissions in 2012/13 to care
homes. Of the 8 admissions, 2 were in privately rented, 2 in supported accommodation,
1 Housing Association tenant and 1 in temporary accommodation.

RESOLVED - (1) - That the minutes of the meeting held on 23 September 2013 be
agreed and signed as a correct record.

CHAIR'S COMMUNICATIONS
Healthwatch

The Chair reported welcomed Jane Viner to the meeting as Healthwatch representative.
Jane reported that representatives would be trained in the new year and that she would
be attending further meetings of the Adult Care & Health Committee.

CALL OVER
RESOLVED - That all items be reserved for discussion.
PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT

The Committee noted that there were no petitions, written questions or deputations from
members of the public.

MEMBER INVOLVEMENT

The Committee noted that there were no petitions, written questions, letters or Notices
of Motion received from councillors.

FINANCE REPORT AT TBM5

The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director of Finance & Resources
which set out the financial position on Adult Services, NHS Trust Managed S75 Budgets
and Public Health budgets as assessed at August 2013. The Head of Business
Engagement reported that she would include more information on capital in the TBM7
report.

Councillor Meadows referred to the section on the Corporate Critical Community Care
Budget (older people), relating to extra care. She asked if the overspend would leave
people in unsatisfactory accommodation. Councillor Meadows asked for more



ADULT CARE & HEALTH COMMITTEE 25 NOVEMBER

36.3

36.4

36.5

36.6

36.7

36.8

36.9

2013

information about projected shortfalls in residents’ contributions (Adult Provider).
Councillor Meadows asked about the NHS overspend in adult mental health. How could
further pressures be predicted? There was a further pressure in community equipment
and options on service models reported to the Committee in September. Councillor
Meadows asked how further growth could be funded. She asked how the £1m risk on
prescribing costs would affect the Section 75 budget and public health. Councillor
Meadows asked why there was a small pressure in civil contingences. She asked if this
was due to severe winter weather pressures.

The Executive Director explained that people would still be placed in suitable
accommodation, the placement would be based on their assessed needs. It was difficult
to predict the client contribution. This varied as people were not financially assessed
until they required the service, the budget assumption is based on previous trends.
There was a 9% growth pressure in mental health and more people were entering the
service making it difficult to predict. There would be a need for more supported living.
With regard to the Integrated Community Equipment Store, there was a need to think
about supporting more people at home. There would be further report about this matter.

The Head of Business Engagement informed members that there was a small staffing
pressure against the civil contingencies budget. Civil Contingencies was a Public Health
function. The Chair stated that the Director of Public Health could be asked to give a
briefing on this matter. On this query on prescribing costs officers have gone back to the
local assumptions agreed with health in setting the 2013/14 budget — prescribing costs
were not included in the calculations of grant. Negotiations were taking place with Public
Health England.

Councillor Norman referred to prescription costs. He asked when and how this matter
would be resolved. The Head of Business Engagement stated that this matter had been
highlighted at the Policy & Resources Committee. It was a national issue. An update
would be provided at the next meeting.

Councillor Mears referred to vacancy management. She asked how many vacancies
had been offered as budget savings. The Executive Director stated that she did not
have figures to hand but could share the figures later.

Councillor Summers referred to the Community Care Budget (Older People). She
asked if the 1.64m saving target was for the whole year. The Head of Business
Engagement confirmed that the variances were for the whole year as at month 5. There
had been a 1.3m overspend. There was a 1.64 saving target which was unlikely to be
achieved. This would be partly offset by other savings.

Councillor Mears stated that only way to reduce the 1.64m deficit would be to change 30
housing units to extra care housing. Unless the budget projection changed the deficit
would be carried forward. The Chair stated that this matter would be dealt when the
budget was considered.

RESOLVED - (1) That the financial position for the 2013/14 financial year as reported
at TBM5 (August 2013) be noted.



ADULT CARE & HEALTH COMMITTEE 25 NOVEMBER

37.

37.1

37.2

37.3

37.4

37.5

37.6

37.7

37.8

37.9

37.10

2013

INTEGRATED TRANSFORMATION FUND

The Board considered a presentation with slides from the Executive Director of Adult
Services, BHCC and the Chief Operating Officer, CCG. The presentation set out the
background to the Integrated Transformation Fund and the financial implications for
Brighton and Hove. Members were informed how councils and CCGs would develop
and agree a joint plan and how they would be rewarded. The presentation stressed the
need for joint working with providers.

Members were informed how the ITF would be managed. The Department of Health
was considering what legislation was required for the ITF. Options would be laid out in
the Care Bill. Members were informed of the draft template for developing an
integrated plan and were informed about the national conditions.

Members were informed that plans needed to be in place by 14 February 2014.
The Chief Operating Officer reported that the plans would prioritise frailty.

Councillor Marsh asked why the frail elderly were a priority and asked if there would be
other priorities. She commented that the timescale was challenging and that she would
like reassurance about data sharing among organisations.

The Chief Operating Officer replied that frailty would be prioritised rather than the frail
elderly specifically. This would include frail people of all ages, although many would be
elderly. She stressed that many younger people had complex needs. There needed to
be strengthened capacity and better planning within teams. The Chief Operating Officer
agreed that the timescales were challenging as plans needed to be in place quite
quickly. The guidance had not yet been received and the Council and CCG were being
proactive. The Chief Operating Officer agreed that there was a need to invest in IT
over the next year. A working group would consider how data was shared across all
organisations.

The Executive Director reported that some mechanisms were already in place. The
independent sector provided a great deal of care as well as the NHS. She was working
with colleagues to resolve these issues.

Councillor Bowden queried the figure in the presentation slide for New under financial
implications for Brighton & Hove. It was confirmed that this figure should be 10.1 (not
10.0). It was agreed that this would be corrected before the Health & Wellbeing Board
meeting on 27 November.

Councillor Jones asked how funding would be allocated and what the criteria would be.
He asked how the money would make a difference to young people. He mentioned
camh (Child and Adolescent Mental Health) as an organisation that might benefit from
the fund.

The Chief Operating Officer replied that she was not sure about the allocation of
funding. She would have to ask her Finance Director to provide this information. The
Executive Director informed the Board that there had been mixed messages about how
the money would be allocated and who could receive it.



ADULT CARE & HEALTH COMMITTEE 25 NOVEMBER

37.11

37.12

37.13

37.14

37.15

37.16

37.17

38.

38.1

38.2

38.3

2013

Councillor Mears expressed concern about information sharing and IT. She mentioned
that the council were currently going through a process of having gcsx encrypted email
addresses. She asked if the CCG were going to have the same system. She stressed
that systems needed to be compatible if information was to be shared.

The Executive Director explained that officers were currently investigating having a
warehouse where all data could go. There was a pilot in West Sussex and officers were
looking at how other areas were dealing with this issue.

Councillor Meadows asked for information about the membership of the ITF Programme
Board and whether there would be representatives of the community and voluntary
sector.

The Chief Operating Officer explained that the Integrated Transformation Fund
Programme Board would involve commissioners, the CCG, Council, hospital and
independent sector and third sector.

Dr Mack expressed concern that there would be a risk in the first year if half of the
funding was payment by result. This could penalise the more efficient. The Executive
Director agreed with Dr Mack. There would be a real risk in setting targets.

Councillor Bowden asked who would be setting Key Performance Indicators. The Chief
Operating Officer explained that the programme would be overseen by the Health and
Wellbeing Board, who would authorise the plans. Having a risk sharing agreement
would be essential.

RESOLVED - That the presentation be noted.
SUPPORTING CARERS

The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director of Adult Services which
gave information on the current support available for carers within Brighton and Hove,
funded through joint commissioning arrangements between Adult Social Care and the
Clinical Commissioning Group. The report also outlined the future developments aimed
at further improving the support to carers locally. The report was presented by the
Commissioning Manager.

Councillor Meadows referred to Appendix 2 — Outcomes and Action Plan. She asked
about the cost implications of having services in place long enough for carers to work
full day (8am to 6pm). Councillor Meadows referred to Appendix 3 which reported that
the government were providing additional funding. She asked what the percentage
would be for Brighton & Hove and whether the money would be ring fenced for carers.
Councillor Meadows referred to the fourth bullet point on the first page of Appendix 4
relating to local intelligence. This showed that most carers who did not feel safe had
either been jointly assessed, assessed by non-statutory agencies or assessed at access
point. Councillor Meadows asked how agencies disseminated information.

The Commissioning Manager replied that there was an aspiration for carers to be in
employment. There would be a work plan in the New Year which would support carers
in obtaining employment. Officers would work with local businesses to help achieve this



ADULT CARE & HEALTH COMMITTEE 25 NOVEMBER

38.4

38.5

38.6

38.7

38.8

38.9

38.10

(2)

39.

39.1

2013

aim. The funding would be made from the community care budget. Work would be
commencing in the New Year to look at data regarding carers. The Commissioning
Manager said she would be happy to bring this information back to the Committee. The
percentage of government funding was not yet known. Meanwhile, there was a great
deal of work being achieved around training and assessment.

The Executive Director reported that there was yet to be an announcement about
funding.

Councillor Mears stated that it was an excellent report and presentation. She expressed
concern that some young carers were as young as 7. She would be very interested in
seeing further information on that subject.

Councillor Marsh hoped the 7 year olds had a dedicated person they could talk to. She
wanted reassurance that young carers could go to school. She asked how branding
could be taken forward.

The Commissioning Manager replied that young carer’'s assessments were carried out
by the young carer’s project. There were still some concerns about who took
responsibility for young carers. Joint assessments were now planned. The role of adult
social care was to eliminate inappropriate assessments. With regard to carers in school
there was a project which helped children use Skype in school. With regard to
rebranding, carers were now given a voucher or token.

Councillor Meadows asked how the health service impacted on this work. The
Commissioning Manager explained that her role was jointed funded by the council and
CCG. She stated that all health professionals should be more aware due to the carers
register. The council and CCG worked closely with the hospitals.

Geraldine Hoban informed the Committee that carers support was a key part of the
service. She stressed that carers support would need to be strengthened even further.

RESOLVED - (1) That the support available for carers, funded jointly between Adult
Social Care and the Clinical Commissioning Group, is noted.

That the projects and activities, aimed at further improving the services for carers, are
noted.

DAY ACTIVITIES REVIEW PROGRESS REPORT 25 NOVEMBER 2013

The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director of Adult Services which
focused on the consultation about the relocation of the Connaught day service and also
provided information about the outcomes of the individual social care assessments that
have been undertaken as part of the Day Activity Review. The report was presented by
the Commissioning Manager, Learning Disabilities and the General Manager, Learning
Disability Provider Services. Members were informed that 38 assessments had been
carried out to date. The assessments were summarised in appendix 2. Appendix 1 set
out the analysis of the consultation about the move of the Connaught Day Service to the
Belgrave Day Options Base in Portslade. A paper setting out case studies was also
made available to members.



ADULT CARE & HEALTH COMMITTEE 25 NOVEMBER

39.2

39.3

39.4

39.5

39.6

39.7

39.8

39.9

39.10

2013

Councillor Norman asked about ongoing work and particularly mentioned the art project
moving to Montague Place. He thanked the officers for their involvement in the project.
The Executive Director replied that a more detailed report would be submitted to the
January 2014 meeting of the committee in terms of day activities.

Councillor Meadows referred to paragraph 3.3.1 which stated that no specific concerns
had been raised during the consultation period. She reported that not all carers had
been consulted and some carers had only been given 2 hours notice to attend a carers’
meeting. Councillor Meadows considered that the consultation document gave the
impression everything had gone well when it did not go well.

Councillor Meadows referred to paragraph 5 of appendix 1 concerning the estimated
costs of the building works at the Belgrave Day Options Base. She asked if the money
would come from Children’s Services or Adult Social Care.

The Executive Director noted the issues raised by Councillor Meadows. She stated that
lessons had been learnt from the process and officers were doing everything to ensure
the process was managed smoothly. With regard to the budget, the estimated cost was
£150,000. It had been agreed that £100,000 would be funded from Children’s Services.
Adult Social Care would pay the difference.

Councillor Mears thanked officers for the report and said she had found the tour of sites
interesting. She referred to paragraph 2.5 of the appendix relating to assessments.
Councillor Mears noted that 2 people required an alternative service but no alternative
service had been identified due to the complexity of need. Councillor Mears asked for
an explanation of paragraph 2.7. This stated that 1 person had been assessed as
needing an alternative service (to the Longer Lives service) but was waiting to identify
someone to share the service with.

The Commissioning Manager, Learning Disabilities explained that for some people
specialist input is required from, for example Psychology or the Behaviour Support
Team around certain behaviours (paragraph 2.5). It might be necessary in this case to
commission a specialist service for the 2 people concerned. With regard to Paragraph
2.7 officers want to maintain friendship groups and not leave people isolated. Once
more assessments have been completed officers will ensure that individuals who have
similar needs or interests are grouped together.

The Chair asked for a further update on the two people mentioned in paragraph 2.5,
where specialist support was required.

Councillor Summers noted that 20 people with complex needs currently used the
Connaught Learning Disability Day Options Service. 14 had been assessed. Did this
mean 6 had not been assessed? Councillor Summers asked for clarification about the
number of people moving to the Belgrave Day Options Base.

The General Manager, Learning Disability Provider Services explained that all
assessments were now complete. 14 people had been identified as needing to move to
the Belgrave Day Options Base.



ADULT CARE & HEALTH COMMITTEE 25 NOVEMBER

2013

39.11 RESOLVED - (1) That itis noted that, in consultation with the Chair of Adult Care &

40.

401

40.2

40.3

40.4

40.5

40.6

Health Committee, the Executive Director of Adult Services used her constitutional
Delegated Authority on 5" November 2013 to approve the relocation of the Connaught
Day Service to the Belgrave Day Options base in Portslade following consideration of
the outcomes from the formal consultation.

That the outcomes of the social care assessments be noted.
COMMUNITY MEALS

The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director of Adult Services which
informed members that the community meals service was retendered in March 2013
and the Royal Voluntary Service (RVS) were successful in retaining the contract. A new
model for meal provision and for the role of volunteers was outlined within the tender
document and RVS ran a pilot to test the new arrangements during August 2013. The
report gave details of the outcomes of the pilot and described the future plans for
introducing the new model across the city. The report was presented by the Contract
Manager.

Councillor Norman thanked the Contracts Manager for the excellent report and stated
that the only issue he wished to raise was the chronology of events as set out in
paragraph 3.1. Councillor Norman mentioned that he had had a vision for better, more
locally sourced meals and that he and the Executive Director had visited City College
three or more years ago to discuss a way of providing locally sourced and locally
cooked food. Councillor Norman stated that he had sampled the old meals and the
new Steamplicity meals and he considered the new product was excellent. He hoped
the meals could be sourced more locally in the future and looked forward to the meals
being rolled out across the city.

Councillor Meadows referred to the safe and well check referred to in paragraph 3.4.3
and appendix 1, paragraph 2.1. She asked about the timeframe for this check.
Councillor Meadows further referred to section 11 of the quality statement set out in the
appendix, concerning the supply of freezers and microwave ovens to customers who
required them. She asked how this was carried out along with the safe and well check.

The Executive Director replied that the model allowed volunteers to spend a great deal
more time with customers. The rounds could be carried out according to what the
person required. The Contract Manager reported that the service could deliver meals a
day in advance. Local volunteers could then visit to heat the meal and spend time with
the customer. The delivery van also had a microwave which could be used when
customers did not have that facility. The RVS would also consider lending microwaves
or funding the cost of microwaves.

Councillor Bowden asked if the contractors had stated how many volunteers they had
and whether they had a sufficient number. Councillor Bowden made the point that St
Albans was still a long way from the City.

The Contracts Manager replied that there were a large number of volunteers in Brighton
and Hove and there had never been a problem in recruiting RVS volunteers.



ADULT CARE & HEALTH COMMITTEE 25 NOVEMBER

40.7

40.8

(2)

41.

41.1

41.2

41.3

42,

421

42.2

2013

Councillor Barnett asked if there was a start date for the new contract. The Contract
Manager replied that if the report was approved, she would meet with the RVS later in
the week. The proposal was to start the process in January 2014 and have everything
in place to enable all customers to receive the service by March 2014.

RESOLVED - (1) That the report be noted.

That the new model for community meals should be introduced in a phased way across
the city.

That the new model of volunteer support suggested by the RVS should also be adopted
and introduced across the city.

MARKET POSITION STATEMENT: ADULT SOCIAL CARE INTENTIONS

The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director of Adult Services informed
members that the Department of Health had urged Local Authorities to create a Market
Position Statement that would be useful for providers of care services in planning their
businesses. The Market Position Statement would outline what adult social care
services Brighton & Hove City Council would commission in the future, and what
services the council would need to provide directly. A completed market position
statement would be presented to Adult Care & Health Committee in March 2014.

The Head of Commissioning & Partnerships set out the report and stressed the need for
a different way of working to make best use of declining resources. She referred to
paragraph 6 of Appendix 1, concerning Adult Social Care’s commitment in challenging
times. She highlighted the need to commission services that offered more choice and
more flexible support to individuals and exploring cost effective and innovative
accommodation solutions to meet individual outcomes.

RESOLVED - (1) That the key messages in the summary document attached in
Appendix 1: Market Position Statement: Adult Social Care Intentions be noted.

EXTRA CARE HOUSING - BROOKE MEAD UPDATE

The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director of Environment,
Development and Housing and the Executive Director of Adult Services which sought
approval for HCA and Housing Revenue Account (HRA) capital and HRA and Adult
Social Care (ASC) revenue funding to support the Brooke Mead extra care scheme and
authority to enter into a Funding Agreement with the HCA for provision of extra care
housing under the Care & Support Specialist Housing Fund; and to award a contract or
contract following procurement to secure the development of the scheme as outlined in
the report.

The Head of Housing Strategy informed Members that the Housing Committee had
approved the report at their meeting on 13 November 2013. The scheme was subject to
final planning approval at the Planning Committee to be held on 11 December 2013.
Any significant variations to the proposed capital scheme and funding would need to be
reported back to Policy & Resources Committee.



ADULT CARE & HEALTH COMMITTEE 25 NOVEMBER

42.3

42.4

42.5

42.6

42.7

42.8

42.9

2013

Councillor Bowden thanked the Head of Housing Strategy and his team for their work on
the report and asked if 45 units was a viable economic option. The Head of Housing
Strategy confirmed that it was a viable scheme.

The Project Officer, Housing Commissioning, informed Members that at one point, the
scheme had dropped from 45 to 40 units due to planning issues. This had led to doubts
about the viability of the scheme. However, this matter had been resolved and the
scheme would have 45 units. 44 units would be one bedroom and one unit would be a
2 bedroom ground floor flat. All would be affordable units to rent. Originally, some two
bedroom homes had been proposed for sale.

Councillor Bowden asked if the height issue was resolved. The Project Manager
confirmed that this matter had been resolved following extensive discussions with
planning officers. Planning officers were satisfied with the scheme and would be
recommending approval.

Councillor Meadows referred to paragraph 3.7 of the report and asked if the change in
the proposals to have all affordable units for rent would affect the grant from the Homes
& Communities Agency. The Project Manager replied that the total grant from the HCA
would remain intact regardless of the changes. The Head of Housing Strategy
confirmed that the HCA were happy with the scheme and had stated that it was possible
to substitute shared ownership funding with affordable rented funding.

Councillor Mears commented that she considered that planning had made the process
unnecessarily difficult. She also commented that this was the only extra care scheme
that would have no parking. This concerned her as it was a highly congested area in
the evening. Councillor Mears stated that she had been told in the past that the
scheme would lead to Adult Social Care saving £300,000 per year; however there was
no mention of this in the report. Councillor Mears further commented that there could be
difficulties in only having 1 bedroom units. Some couples did not share a bedroom and
some people might need a carer to stay on site.

The Executive Director of Adult Services reported that it was often more difficult in
practice to let 2 bedroom units. The Head of Finance — Business Engagement
explained that with regard to savings, the original model was based on 39 units at
£330,000 a year. The new modelling was £330,000 to £500,000 a year based on 44-45
units.

RESOLVED - (1) That the Policy & Resources Committee is recommended to agree
to fund up to £2.1 million (with maximum increase limited to 10%) to enable
Brooke Mead to be built.

NOTE: Councillor Jones left the meeting during discussion of this item as he is Deputy Chair of
the Planning Committee.

43.

43.1

ITEMS REFERRED FOR COUNCIL

RESOLVED - That no items be referred to Council

10



ADULT CARE & HEALTH COMMITTEE 25 NOVEMBER
2013

The meeting concluded at 6.54pm

Signed Chair

Dated this day of

11






ADULT CARE & HEALTH Agenda Item 50
COMMITTEE (JOINTLY

COMMISSIONED (SECTION 75) Brighton & Hove City Council

BUSINESS

Subject: Finance Report at TBM7

Date of Meeting: 20 January 2014

Report of: Executive Director of Finance & Resources
Chief Finance Officer, Brighton & Hove CCG

Contact Officer: Name: Anne Silley Tel: 29-5065
Michael Schofield Tel: 574743
Anne.silley @ brighton-hove.gcsx.gov.uk

Email: michaelschofield@ nhs.net
Ward(s) affected: All

FOR GENERAL RELEASE

1.

1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

3.1

SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT:

This reports sets out the revenue and capital financial position on Adult Services,
NHS Trust Managed S75 Budgets and Public Health.

The report includes extracts from the Council’'s 2014/15 budget strategy and
budget proposals covering Adult Services, and Public Health and provides
indicative information on the CCG budget strategy for 2014/15.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the Committee notes the financial position for the 2013/14 financial year as
reported at TBM7 (October 2013).

That the Committee consider the 2014/15 budget strategies for the health and
social care arrangements set out for development and agreement by Budget
Council and the CCG Governing Body.

CONTECT/ BACKGROUND INFORMATION
Financial Position — Month 7 — 2013/14

The Targeted Budget Monitoring (TBM) report is a key component of the
council’s overall performance monitoring and control framework. This report sets
out the forecast outturn position as at Month 7 as reported to Policy & Resources
Committee on 5 December 2013.

13



Adult Services— Month 7 — 2013/14

3.2  The Adult Services forecast is an overspend of £3.189 million (5.0% above
budget) as set out in the table below. The main reason for the overspend is the
underachievement against savings targets at the same time as continuing
demand pressure on the budget as described in Appendix 1. The mitigation
strategy to manage the overspend includes implementing savings plans,
management of placements, corporate strategic work and continuing to identify
appropriate funding streams.

Forecast 2013/14 Forecast Forecast Forecast

Variance Budget Outturn Variance Variance

Month 5 Month 7 Month 7 Month 7 Month 7

£'000 | Adult Services £'000 £'000 £'000 %

1,834 | Adults Assessment 48,095 49,988 1,893 3.9%

762 | Adults Provider 14,713 16,013 1,300 8.8%

(9) | Commissioning & 496 492 4) -0.8%
Contracts

2,587 | Total Adult Services 63,304 66,493 3,189 5.0%

3.3 The NHS Trust-managed Section 75 Services represent those services for which
local NHS Trusts act as the Host Provider under Section 75 Agreements.
Services are managed by Sussex Partnership Foundation Trust (SPFT) and
Sussex Community NHS Trust (SCT) and include health and social care services
for Mental Health, and Community Equipment.

These partnerships are subject to separate annual risk-sharing arrangements
and the monitoring of financial performance is the responsibility of the respective
host NHS Trust provider. The forecast outturn (after risk share) is an overspend
of £0.283 million ( 2.3%)as explained in Appendix 1.
Forecast 2013/14 Forecast Forecast Forecast
Variance Budget Outturn Variance Variance
Month 5 Month 7 Month 7 Month 7 Month 7
£'000 [ S75 Partnership £'000 £'000 £'000 %
228 | SPFT 11,429 11,649 220 1.9%
61| SCT 641 704 63 9.8%
289 | Total Revenue - 12,070 12,353 283 2.3%
S75

The CCG contracts with SCT and SPFT are currently forecast to breakeven.
Regular discussions are being held with the Trusts during the year to ensure that
pressures materialising are addressed.

14




Public Health— Month 7 — 2013/14

3.4  The expenditure forecast is within the ring-fenced public health grant from the
Department of Health of £18.2 million.

Forecast 2013/14 Forecast Forecast Forecast
Variance Budget Outturn Variance Variance
Month 5 Month 7 Month 7 Month 7 Month 7
£'000 | Unit £'000 £'000 £'000 %
0 | Public Health 35 35 0 0.0%
0 [ Community Safety 1,595 1,595 0 0.0%
8 | Civil Contingencies 177 184 7 4.0%
8 | Total Public Health 1,807 1,814 7 0.4%

The figures in the table above are net of the ring- fenced public health grant of £18.2m
from the Department of Health

Capital- Month 7 — 2013/14

3.5

The capital position for Adult Services against the revised budget at month 7 of
£2.3 million is set out in Appendix 2. The approval request for the Belgrave
Centre link extension scheme of £0.15 million, to accommodate the move of the
Connaught Day Centre is also at Appendix 2.

Council Planning for 2014/15

3.6

3.7

3.8

The Council budget strategies for 2014/15 cover financial and service pressures
and savings proposals as presented to the Council’s Policy & Resources
Committee on 5 December 2013 and are in the process of consultation. A
revised set of proposals will be presented to Policy & Resources Committee on
13 February 2014 taking into consideration the feedback from further
consultation and scrutiny and the most up to date financial information. The final
responsibility for agreeing the council’s budget for 2014/15 rests with Full Council
on 27 February 2014.

Adult Services 2014/15 budget strategy

The strategy (Appendix 3) sets out the strategic financial context, local and
national developments that will have a significant impact on social care, and
progress against Council priorities. The budget strategy supports delivery of the
Corporate Plan, however the financial position will require strengthened
commissioning and integration with health partners, greater consistency in
meeting statutory assessed needs and a continuing challenge to the value for
money of all services.

A summary of the 2014/15 Adults budget is below; this shows a reduction of
4.3% over the 2013/14 budget

Adults Services £000

2013/14 Adjusted budget 74,538
Add Inflation 1,144
Add service pressure funding 1,500
Less savings 5,376
2014/15 proposed budget 71,806

15




3.9

3.10

3.1

3.12

3.13

In addition, one off resources of £0.5 million have been set aside in light of the
scale of Adult Social Care Reforms and the lack of certainty about the adequacy
of funding to support those changes.

Adult Services (including S75) is expected to generate savings of £5.3 million in

2014/15 (with a full year effect of £5.8 million). The savings proposals are set out

in Appendix 3 and approaches include:

» Ensuring equality of service across client groups

» Encouraging people to take up personalised services

* Enabling people placed outside the city to receive services locally

* Using reablement and telecare and community equipment services to
support people to live at home

» Working with the care sector on care home fees

» Exploring models for providing care and other opportunities that the Care &
Support Bill may offer.

» Exploring opportunities for Able & Willing to become financially sustainable,
and reducing investment in the non statutory Employment Service.

» Working with other services, including Public Health to deliver efficiencies in
the commissioning process

* Maintaining service quality across the city

The savings proposals reflect the fees and charges reports being considered at
this meeting.

The corporate budget strategy provides for investment in Adult Services to meet
known demographic and other cost pressures relating to Learning Disability
transitions and demands across mental health services. Funding of £1.5 million
has been set aside in the budget proposals to avoid severe impacts on these
service budgets.

The Care and Support Bill and Better Care Fund (previously known as
Integration Transformation Fund) will bring new responsibilities, expectations to
join up services across NHS and social care and joint funding. The City expects
to receive approximately £1 million in 2014/15. Appendix 5 outlines the current
assumptions and associated risks of these changes.

Public Health 2014/15 budget strategy

3.14

In 2013/14 councils gained responsibility for Public Health. The Department of
Health awarded a ring fenced grant of £18.3 million in 2013/14 and £18.7 million
for 2014/15 to cover the public health responsibilities transferred to the local
authority. The public health budget strategy (Appendix 4) sets out the strategic
financial context, and how it will support the delivery of the corporate plan. Joint
working and joint commissioning with other directorates and the Clinical
Commissioning Group (CCG) is expected to result in greater efficiency and
effectiveness. Modest savings proposals of £0.093 million are proposed which
are expected to support the achievement of Public Health Outcomes across the
Council.

16



CCG Planning for 2014/15 and future years

3.15 NHS England has published its planning framework Everyone Counts: Planning
For Patients 2014/15 to 2018/19. The CCG has been notified of its Allocation for
the next two years, but is still waiting for further detailed financial planning
guidance.

3.16 Of most significance is the requirement to generate additional funds to contribute
to the Better Care Fund (previously the Integration Transformation Fund).
Although additional funding is expected in 2014/15, for 2015/16 there is the need to
generate additional funding, a 3% savings requirement in addition to the existing
‘QIPP’ savings target. The CCG and the Council are working up joint plans on
collective spending against this Fund.

3.17 The CCG is in the process of developing financial plans for 2014/15 to 2018/19 for
submission to NHS England.

4. ANALYSIS & CONSIDERATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

4.1  The budget process allows engagement in the proposals.

5. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

5.1  Consultation approaches included a survey (on line and on paper) and
engagement opportunities as described in the budget report to Policy &
Resources Committee 5 December 2013.

6. CONCLUSION

6.1  The Council is under a statutory duty to set its budget and council tax before 11
March each year.

7. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

Financial Implications:

7.1 The financial implications are contained within the main body of the report,
highlighting the performance against agreed budgets in 2013/14 and the budget
strategies for 2014/15 for social care and health.

Finance Officer Consulted: Anne Silley/ Debra Crisp Date: 07/01/14

Legal Implications:

7.2  This Report is for noting and consideration only.

Lawyer Consulted: Sandra O’Brien Date: 07/01/2014

17



7.3

7.4

7.5

Equalities Implications:

In Brighton & Hove City Council a Budget Equality Impact Assessment (EIA)
screening process has been used to identify the potential disproportionate
impacts of proposals on groups covered up by legislation. All service areas that
have identified proposals with a potential equalities impact have completed an
EIA, included at Appendix 10 of the Budget Update and Savings 2014/15 report
to Policy and Resources Committee 5 December 2013, and this is cross-
referenced within the savings proposals.

Sustainability Implications:

A carbon budget has been set for 2014/15 and sustainability implications are set
out in the Budget Update and Savings 2014/15 report to Policy and Resources
Committee 5 December 2013

Any Other Significant Implications:
Risk and Opportunity Management Implications

The Council’s budget proposals include recurrent risk provisions of £2 million and
a one off risk provision of £1 million.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:

1. Revenue budget summary Adults, S75 and Public Health- 2013/14

2. Capital summary- Adults 2013/14

3. Budget strategy- Adults 2014/15

4, Budget strategy- Public Health 2014/15

5. Care Bill and Better Care Fund (previously known as Integrated Transformation

Fund) (extract from Policy and Resources Committee Budget Update and
Savings 2014/15)

Background Documents

. Budget Update and Savings 2014/15 report to Policy & Resources Committee 5

December 2013

18



6T

Appendix 1 — Revenue Budget Performance

Adult Services — Revenue Budget Summary

Month 5 2013/14 Forecast Forecast Forecast
Forecast Budget Outturn Variance Variance
Variance Month 7 Month 7 Month 7 Month 7

£'000 | Service £'000 £'000 £'000 %
1,834 | Adults Assessment 48,095 49,988 1,893 3.9%
762 | Adults Provider 14,713 16,013 1,300 8.8%
(9) | Commissioning & Contracts 496 492 (4) -0.8%
2,587 | Total Revenue - Adult 63,304 66,493 3,189 5.0%

Explanation of Key Variances

Key
Variances
£°000

Service

Description
(Note: FTE/WTE = Full/Whole Time Equivalent)

Mitigation Strategy (Overspends
only)

The key variances across Adult Social Care are as detailed
below:

Mitigating actions continue to be
taken wherever practicable but there
remain considerable pressures on the
Adult Social Care budget.

Adults Assessment

accommodation. These options are complex and there are
significant service, legal, financial and commissioning
considerations to work through for each option that will require
a greater lead-in time than originally anticipated. Currently,
there is a significant risk that units and/or alternative options will

see below | Assessment Assessment Services are showing an overspend of £1.893m
Services (3.9% of net budget) at Month 7, broken down as follows: -
1,350 | Corporate The pressure on the Older People community care budget Corporate strategic work is ongoing
Critical - relates to the Supported Living and Extra Care Housing savings | to deliver the extra care units
Community target of £1.640m jointly commissioned with Housing which is required and explore/develop the
Care Budget now not expected to be delivered in year. The target includes other options - this includes the
(Older People) | options around Sheltered Housing, Shared Lives and other proposal for Brookmead, which is

unlikely to deliver cost savings until
2014/15 or beyond.

Placements are also being managed
to contain the potential overspend in
2013/14.




0¢

Appendix 1 — Revenue Budget Performance

Key | Service Description Mitigation Strategy (Overspends
Variances (Note: FTE/WTE = Full/Whole Time Equivalent) only)
£000

not be deliverable in time to achieve the savings target for As mentioned in the main report,

2013/14. available corporate risk provision is
being used to mitigate the council’s
overall position which is primarily due
to the pressures detailed here and
under Adults Provider services.

(46) | Corporate Learning Disabilities are reporting an underspend of £0.046m at
Critical - Month 7, which is a decrease of £0.108m from Month 5. A
Community pressure of £0.070m relates to day services where double
Care Budget running will be necessary until the savings in provider services
(Learning can be achieved. As highlighted previously, it should be noted
Disabilities) that the potential impact from Ordinary Residence 'OR' claims

against the budget is £0.755m full year effect, of which
£0.127m is included in the forecast. All OR applications need
to be reassessed by B&H and are prioritised against risk,
therefore there can be a delay in acceptance. Although the
majority of applications are legally justifiable, some are disputed
successfully.

715 | Corporate Under 65's are currently showing an overspend of £0.715m; a Continuing to explore alternative
Critical - decrease of £0.015m from Month 5. The underlying pressure is | models of provision and funding.
Community largely due to the full-year effect of the increased complexity
Care Budget (e.g. Acquired Brain Injury) in small numbers of high cost
(Under 65's) placements against homecare and direct payments. Actual

whole time equivalent client numbers are 149 more than
budgeted (increase of 22%).
(55) | Community The underspend is a continuation of the activity and spending

Care Budget
(HIV)

levels experienced over the last 2 financial years.
Consideration needs to be given to realigning budget, given the
pressures on other areas described above.

(71)

Support &
Intervention
Teams

There is a risk around the delivery of the £0.340m savings
target in respect of joint commissioning provider arrangements.

Planning service redesign, however
this is unlikely to achieve savings in
2013/14. One off funding relating to a
legal case on funding a learning




1X4

Appendix 1 — Revenue Budget Performance

Key | Service Description Mitigation Strategy (Overspends
Variances (Note: FTE/WTE = Full/Whole Time Equivalent) only)
£000

disability placement should cover the

pressure for 2013/14 only.
Adults Provider

1,300 | Adults Provider | The forecast overspend includes an assessed risk of £1.000m | The services are working to

against the achievement of savings targets totalling £1.640m implement the changes required to
(2013/14 targets and unachieved targets in 2012/13). deliver the savings and to identify
Achievement of the savings is dependent on the commissioning | further opportunities to make
review of day options, the corporate VFM programme on efficiencies across all the services.
transport, the review of options for different service models led | There is an ongoing workstream to
by a corporate working group, and the Learning Disabilities ensure that all appropriate funding
accommodation review, all of which are underway. streams are maximised. However,

this is unlikely to address the
The forecast overspend also includes additional pressures on potential overspend of £1.300m.

Adults Provider budgets due to increased staffing in the As mentioned in the main report,
Resource Centres for Older People (£0.469m).This has been available corporate risk provision is
partly offset by one off and recurrent Department of Health being used to mitigate the council’s
Social Care funding (£0.262m) and projected shortfalls on overall position which is primarily due
Residents Contributions (£0.066m). There are minor to the pressures detailed here and
overspends of £0.027m. under Adults Assessment.

Commissioning & Contract

(4) | Commissioning | There is a pressure of approximately £0.040m against delivery
& Contracts of the Community Meals savings target, which is offset against
vacancy management savings across the service.

7,







NHS Trust Managed S75 Budgets - Revenue Budget Summary

Appendix 1 — Revenue Budget Performance

€c

Month 5 2013/14 Forecast Forecast Forecast
Forecast Budget Outturn Variance Variance
Variance Month 7 Month 7 Month 7 Month 7

£'000 | S75 Partnership £'000 £'000 £'000 %

298 (2;7:3_'(_3))( Partnership Foundation NHS Trust 11,429 11,649 220 1.9%

61 | Sussex Community NHS Trust (SCT) 641 704 63 9.8%

289 | Total Revenue - S75 12,070 12,353 283 2.3%

Explanation of Key Variances
Key | Service | Description Mitigation Strategy (Overspends
Variances (Note WTE = Whole Time Equivalent) only)
£°000

Sussex Partnership Foundation NHS Trust
220 | SPFT Sussex Partnership NHS Foundation Trust are reporting an overspend | Ongoing scrutiny at Panel and

of £0.440m at Month 7 (a decrease of £0.016m from Month 5), reflecting | identifying appropriate funding streams.

pressures from a lack of affordable residential and nursing placements | The BHT Start project has been

across the board, potentially leading to increased use of high cost extended. Move on activity to remain a

placements and waivers within Older People Mental Health. There key element of work for Transitions

continues to be a pressure from an increase in need and complexity in | team and Recovery services.

Adult Mental Health and forensic services within residential and

supported accommodation. Overall activity shows that there are 79

whole time equivalent clients more than budgeted (increase of 9%). In

line with the agreed risk-share arrangements for 2013/14 any

overspend will be shared 50/50 between SPFT and BHCC and this has

been reflected in the overspend of £0.220m reported here.

63 | SCT The pressure of £0.063m against the Integrated Community Equipment | Options on service models were

Store (ICES) budget reflects the continued increased demand for reported to Adult Care & Health

equipment and is a continuation of the trends seen in last financial year. | Committee in September.







Public Health — Revenue Budget Summary

Appendix 1 — Revenue Budget Performance

T4

Month 5 2013/14 Forecast Forecast Forecast
Forecast Budget Outturn Variance Variance
Variance Month 7 Month 7 Month 7 Month 7

£'000 | Service £'000 £'000 £'000 %
0 | Public Health 35 35 0 0.0%
0 [ Community Safety 1,595 1,595 0 0.0%
8 | Civil Contingencies 177 184 7 4.0%
8 | Total Revenue - Public Health 1,807 1,814 7 0.4%

Key | Service Mitigation Strategy (Overspends only)
Variances

£000
0 | Public Health | This is a ring-fenced grant of £18.2m from the
Department of Health, which is being provided to
give local authorities the funding needed to
discharge their new public heath responsibilities.
The expectation is that funds will be utilised in-year,
but if at the end of the financial year there is any
underspend this can be carried over, as part of a
public health reserve, into the next financial year. In
utilising those funds next year, the grant conditions
will still need to be complied with.

Community Safety

0 | Community Community Safety are forecasting a break-even

Description

Safety position at Month 7.
Civil Contingencies
7 | Civil There is a small pressure being reported due to Non-pay budget areas will be closely reviewed

and savings generated where possible to cover
identified pressure.

Contingencies | slightly increased staff costs







8y} Jey) pesodoud s1 ]| "S80IAIBS WIS} HOYS O JusludojsAap au Ul

Ajoud e se uses Jabuo| ou s} aWayds ey} pue sajjliold sy} paisplsuooal SHIOM
aABY 9DD 8y} pue s18210 (19unod se Buipsssoid aq jou jim (€102 LOISIBAUOY) ajioiday
Aenuep $Z ynd 1B nmm_mmv Eman_mSmn {endeo sjeA usAel) pauueld syl | - 8|BA UsARID | (ZvZ L) 18bpng
EOIETTGE
3lBA UBARID m£ uo puadsiapun au) Joj SUOSEDI 38U} JO} MO|aq 99%
"(WDG0"03) uoisuaixa Ui aljua) aaelblag iy Jo 19adsal Ul s1s00 |ejded SHIOAA
8y} 0} eIngLuod pue (WOS|'0F) eJe0ajd ] U0 puadsISAC JSEDDIOL 8L} pun UOISIaALOD) uonelep

0} 196pnq /107 Bunsixa ayj woi) Wwogz 03 Jajsuel o) mmmoao‘_a s1 9|/ UsAeI) (002) 190png

19pIA0.d SHNPY.

EmFEmem m>_Em>mL_ s
uepodwil m_E Hoddns pue puadsiaAo jse0810) 8Y} puny o) SHIOA ©uonBUeA

UOISIBAUOD) S|eA UBAeI) Juadsiapun wolj Jebpng Jajsuen o) pesodosd si ) 21228(91 | 0G) 196png

. JusWssassy sInpy.

>mm._u.m.___~m R
uoneBiin . uopduosaqg josloid | 000.3 adA] |rejeq

:mojaq uaalb aie sajyoiday Jo abedd||g ‘seouenep jsessloy Jueaubls Jo suoneue|dxa pue s}sanbal uonjeHeA JO S|IB}a(

S9JIAJBG
%00 0 gee'e - |sze'c | (zezZ'L) 0sL 0 0Lp's Hnpy [ejol | 0
_ sjoeJuoN) pue
00 (0 sk | B ] — L Bujuolssiuwog | ¢
%00 L €L ... geL  |fewy'y)  losk {0 |sl0'z_ | Jepioid synpy 10
JusuIssessy
%0°0 0 447 | ¥2F | 0S) 0 0 (X4 SINPY | 0
% 000.3 0003 | 000.3 000.3 0003 0003 000.3 20IAI9g | 000.3
L puoly L Juopy Lwuow | Lyow | spyoadas | (p xipuaddy) | sBugsspy | 3ebpng S Yiuoly
aJjuelIEA asueMep winyng jobpng | febedd)g | sawaysg J8yjo je S gl wInpng
|[EUQISIAOI | [eUOISIACLY | [BUOISIAOL] | $L/EL0OZ | ‘uOljelBA MapN pauoday | yi/£L0Z , 1seoaloy

Alewiwng jabpng jendeq ~ sanialag npy

aJuellIoOUad swweibold _m:n_mo, ~ Xipuaddy

27



‘epuabe sIy) UO aiaymaes|e Hodal sjeledss e

ul pajielop se juawdojaasp Buisno ale) elx3 peswyoolg eyl ‘ejdwexs
1o} ‘Buipnipul ‘syoafosd aimng poddns o} spise 18s aq Weyy' L3 jo 186png
SL/71L0Z Y} pue wzie L3 40 186png ele usael) yL/e10g Buiuews)

Abajeng
uoneBiiN

uondunsaqg

109loug

000.3

adA] 1ejeq

asueunOpad awiweiboid jepden - Z. xipuaddy

28




'$19BpNq S80IAISS JNPY BU} UIYIM IO

SWO0D 0} pasu |jm Lolym aius) saeiblag je sseooe 1| o] anp pasijeul} Usag Sey Japus) ay) @0uo palinbal aq Aew spuny [eUOHIPPY
'$80IM88 JINpY Aq pebieuew josfold |epde) ajeA UsABID B} WOl paLsiSUBL 89 0} WSO 03 Bululewal oy} )M swayos

|E}}ded 8y} spJemo] LoNgIUoD & se puadsispun 186png pun4 [e18UsS) S,Us.PYD BY) WOJ) paluSpl Ueaq sey Bupuny WwogL 03

dwijeiouedld:
$89) puUe S}S0J PajEWIISS (B0

051

0S suofpeoljdw! [eloueUld 883 - (a1e)s aseald) Jayi0
00} sSUOIINQUILOYD anusAsy
SLivLoe 7L/EL0C es

1deg,

‘aqjue) aAelbjag 0} soAleg Aeq Jybneuuo) Wolp sAow
L} 8)epowLwodde o) Jayiebo) sBuipjing omi yul| o) aljues) aAeiblag je SyIom Joj S| swayds [eldes siy] Ao ay; ssoioe sjuawsaoeld
[00Y2s jo uoisuedxa 1o} mofle 0} anua) aaeiBlag o) Bunow aq (M aiuag Aeq yBneuuos “oslold sjooyos psje|al ey} Jo Jed sy

3sanboy jeaosddy 19sfoid [e)ides m:

sabueyy swweibouid [eydes - ¥ Ripuaddy ZNgl -

29



0€



T€

AP ENDWY 3

Appendix 3

Budget Strategy: Adults Services

Strategic Financial Context and Direction of Travel

Adulit social care continues to deliver services through personalised care and
support plans, prevention and supporting carers.

There are local and national developments that will have a significant impact
on social care in the coming years, these include:

¢ Demographic changes in the population of Brighton and Hove with:

o a reducing number of pebple aged over 65, but an increased
proportion of people aged 85 plus with high and complex needs;

o agrowing number of young adults with a higher complexity of
need including mental health, substance misuse and
homelessness.

¢ Major changes in the legislation and funding of social care. The Care
and Support Bill puts the ‘safeguarding’ of vulnerable adults into a legal
framework. There are other aspects of the draft bill including well-
being, advice and information, national eligibility criteria, portability of
assessment, the support needs of broader communities and legal
entitlement of informal carers. All these will place additional or
enhanced responsibilities on the council’s social care duty.

» Additional duties linked to the final outcomes of the Dilnot report and
implementing a ‘cap’ on care costs. This will require the authority to
_keep care accounts for self funders and imposes a duty to assess self
funders. This will place significant additional demands on social care
' services.

e Government proposals on [ntegration with Health. The Integrated
Transformation Fund (ITF), detailed in the government’s spending
review, requires local authorities to work with key partners on delivering
key performance targets. These include minimising delayed transfers
of care, and admission avoidance. These will demand a greater level of
integration regarding how care in the community is delivered.

¢ Increased public expectations regarding the quality of care against
growing public concern about the actual quality of care.

A key focus in adult social care services has been on commissioning. The
majority of care services have been contracted out to the private and
voluntary sector. We have carefully considered the unit cost and the value for
money that services offer through our Commissioning Programme. Aligned to
this, over recent years a significant procurement programme has been



A

undertaken to improve value for money, including home care, community
meals, and accommodation services.

Where services are still provided in-house we need to demonstrate the
rationale for retaining these services, focusing on their effectiveness and
efficiency, and how they complement other provision in the city. We have
reduced our in-house provider service over the years where this has provided
value for money opportunities, but still retain a significant level of provision in
relation to people with a learning disability and have been taking opportunities
to improve efficiency and deliver savings whilst sustaining service quality. Our
in-house care management services have undergone a significant restructure
alongside the council's ‘workstyles’ programme which has delivered
efficiencies and savings against improved outcomes.

Charges to service users for services are made in accordance with the
national Fairer Charging guidance and related regulations. Councils do have
some element of discretion in relation to charges for community based
services, and local charges are comparatively higher in relation to many
services. There is limited scope therefore to increase charges further.

The success of our budget strategy so far has enabled the council to maintain
eligibility criteria under Fair Access to Care at the current level —i.e.
“substantial and critical” — rather than to tighten this further. This is important
as it is likely the Care & Support Bill will set national criteria at this level.

Delivering the Corporate Plan

Tackling inequality

Adult Social Care services remain focused on supporting the most vuinerable
people in the city, promoting independence to enable people to fulfil their

potential. Working with colleagues in mental health services under Section 75
Health Act arrangements, we work and support people with the most complex

' needs in the city through a range of interventions from a clinical nature

through to heiping people get back to work.

Further work on options for supporting the homeless community and those in
temporary accommodation are under development, and we are working with
the Stronger Families, Stronger Communities teams.

We will work with colleagues to look at low level prevention services across
the council to promote social and financial inclusion.

Engaging people who live and work in the city

This year we held our first City Summit - a stakeholder event which brought
together 80 representatives including those receiving services, informal carers
and interested citizens. The event supported them to share their views on
social care and identify the key areas they would like to see improved or
developed. The event was supported by over 20 volunteer facilitators from
across the council and the voluntary sector. in tandem with the event over 20
information stalls on local services were open to all. The event linked into the



€e

production of our second annual Local Account (a public document that was
based on the outcomes from user and carer surveys alongside performance
information) and our involvement in the national Making it Real programme, a
user led programme to promote genuine personalisation of services. We have
developed an action plan in response to these events to enable a ‘you said,
we did’ approach to this engagement.

There are also a range of regular forums with care providers across the city

‘which promote a partnership approach, provide an opportunity to share best

practice, enable commissioners to share their plans and ensure a dialogue on
key issues. :

Commissioners are working on producing a robust market position statement
for the end of the year which will clarify to the sector and the public the areas
we are planning to develop and those areas where we are Iooklng to reduce
our commissioning activity.

Annual surveys of service users and bi-annual carers’ surveys are undertaken
in line with national requirements; this information is benchmarked and used
to inform service lmprovement and development

All significant commissioning plans are informed by the views of people who
use services.

Modernising the council

Service redesign and business process improvements have delivered
efficiencies. Opportunities for a joint approach to prevention with Public Health
need to be explored and for there to be a more systematic approach to
commissioning, procurement and contract management across Public Health,
Communities, Housing and Children’s Services. '

Key Aspects of the Budget Strategy

The budget strategy supports delivery of the Corporate Plan, however the
financial position will require strengthened commissioning and integration with
health partners, greater consistency in meeting statutory assessed needs and
a continuing challenge to the value for money of all services. This will reduce
the level of service received by some client groups where these are above
statutory assessed needs but will ensure equality of service across client
groups. Other approaches are:

e We will encourage people to take up personalised services, including
the use of direct payments.

e We will review local service provision to enable people placed outside
the city to have the opportunity to receive services locally, linked to a
full understanding of the quality and cost of such services.

¢ We will continue to use our effective reablement and telecare services
to support people to live at home, optimising their capacity to live



ve

independently. We will also recommission community equipment
services jointly with the NHS during 2014/15.

We will work with the care sector on care home fees to inform
decisions on levels of fees.

We will continue to explore models for providing care, looking for
opportunities that provide better outcomes and a more efficient service,
both within the council and through other providers. For example, we
will continue with the day services review and be clear about the role of
in-house services within this. We will also explore other opportunities
that the Care & Support Bill may offer to support our overall budget
strategy. :

Similarly, we will explore the business case for our Able & Willing
service and look to see if there are opportunities for this to become
financially sustainable; if not, alternative options for re-providing this
service will need to be considered.

We propose to stop the non-statutory Employment Service and work
with other providers in the city to ensure there is appropriate capacity
and support into employment to meet the needs of people with a
learning disability.

We will work with other services such as Public Health and
Communities to deliver wider efficiencies in the commissioning process
using more innovative procurement vehicles such as the
commissioning Prospectus approach. Through this work we will also
seek to develop a co-ordinated approach to preventive services and
promoting community involvement in the care and support of people
with social care needs.

We will sustain and keep under review the robust Care Governance
arrangements that have been developed over the past 3 years to
promote and assure ourselves of service quality. To date these have
helped maintain service quality across the city.



‘Asea Aew sweans
Bulpun) pue S80IAISS JO UOREI0"
‘BIED SAI908] IS |iM BUSJLD

‘aig1ssod alaym suopn|os
Buisnoy aanewaie Anuapi
‘miea Buisinu pue jejpuapIsal
OJU| SUOISS|WPE JO tagquuinu

8y #anpai 0} pue Jabuo] saloy
umo Jlays uj Aeys o) e|doed poddns
0] 81B38|8) pue jusLua|geal
sjownid 0) anujjuo ‘maiaal

g Bumoyo; Bupabiey ybnoay)
a|qejiene st Bupuny ajeudoldde
{|E 8Insuz "sjuawgne|d

Baly JO INQ JO }$97) 8y} pue

‘SpoauU passasse J@aw 0} J0)eg
apuadapuy) sy} Aq papiaoid
s80IA18S aler) Ajunwiwon
{(HWJO ) speau

UnesH |ejusly yim a(doad 19pi0
sepnou) )BusinN/eRuspisay

0S4'L 05l € 'ON VI3| Auqifiye ysujebe pessasse asoyl|  sjuswaened jo Jaquinu sanpay|esu pgz'aL  [Liz'ze -a|doag J9p|Q
) laul
ale spasu passasse Ajuo Buunsus

sdnosb| pue sebBeyoed aied || Bumaimal "SpaBU pAsSasse Jasw 0] J0joag

usy3 s8Uio ym sul| Lr sapiiges|a)  Aq 18Bpng ey} uo uonanpal 94,01 Juapuadaepu; ey Ag papiacad

Burtues uo aunypuadxa Buibuug 2 anaiyoe ‘sjuawied 1oad|q Jo Sa01M9S A1) AUnLuo

Aq sdnosB Jueo ssuoe ao1nes]  laquinuy asealou) '(Syy) wesis ‘sjuauwifed 10841] ' 848D

QgL 0EL 2 'ON VI3 10 sfoAg)| Jo Ayenba Jeaep jiam|  uaieno|ly sounosay juawa|dw)(eu 845'9 180'6 swoH-{gnsapingesiq Buuiean

0iZ'L

000.3
sBujaes
SLivLoe

10 joays

JEB |IN4d

0ie'L

000,3
SLyLoT
paljuap)
sBuaeg

juauIssassy
joedwy saienbg

"sdnosb
JuBl|D Jaylo Ylim aul u) saligesIg
Bujuwzea uo sunppuadxs Bulbulg
Aq sdnoib jus|D ssoi0e soIAes
10 sjaag| Jo Ajenba Jaallep |IAL

sSalptolld  sewoaing uo joedu)

‘Bujay papoddns apnjouy

O} 81ED |0 S[2p0W sAljEULIB)E
lapisucy ‘aacH » uobug oy
passed aq J3je| PinOd 240 J0 1809
ay) jeyl Aligissod e s) a1ay) asatm
sanuoyine Jayjo Ag dn uaye) Guiag
5a0e|(d {eD0| Jo YSit 2y} sonpal

[1m 3 Ing sBulaes Jueoyuf)s
ajessusb Ajuo jou |m sy “AuD
ayy ut Bujay paroddns ol yoeq
a|doad Buibuuq jo asodind e yim

Aytunysoddp
Butaeg jo uondiunsag

siuatuased A3 jo no e 1ebie ]

g3id

JuswysijqeIsy

ejoy,

35

eeo'zL

000.3
3bpng
19N

000.3
jabpng
S8045)

"SpasL POSSASsE Jooll 0] J10]0ag
juspuadspu) sy Aq papiacid
SaDIAISG alen) Ajunwition)
‘lenuapisay

-{a1) sapngesiq Buwes

(uonduosep
jauq Buipnjouy) avaseg

| SHOIANES S1INAY: Baly 82inag




36

‘SpasU passesse Ao)nie)s
‘Aea Aew sweals 186U 0) S821AL8S BAjjEUIB)E
Buipuny pue saaAas Jo UONERI0Y UOISSIWLDD pUe Sasnoy
"21ED 8AIS081 [|AS (I BUBMS| Hw0s 8sol)) ‘ue|d uojepowwosde (ssouas
00t gL 9 'ON I3} Awigibie ysujebe passasse asoy, Q110 g 8Seld aguswiwion |/ L g| 2028 0ER'Y {1} '$801AIBS UOJEPOWILICITY (]
51500 ((HW)
"paASILIE S| 51500 U)eay yieay jo Aaacoal |jnf sInsug anuaay playfem ‘(Hin) ebpod
Jo Assa008! 1800 i) 1By} papiaoid; “spioa Buisiwuiw yBnoayy Aoedes puE(S1] ‘9snoy [[oud] 'BjeA UBARID)
papaau JoN]| sawosino uo Joedw pajoadxs oN asnoy-u| Jo asn jsaq exen aydosad Jep|0) SBIUaD) BOIN0SIY
: L i - 13pIACId SINPY.
92y [Bj0t JUBUISSassY SNpy
72bpnq
ales Ajunwwos ey o) sbBunes
Janjiep pue (Jay YilesH [Busiy
8U} J3pun suojssjupe Guipnjouy)
suonaun; JI0JNE]S 188W 0] MBINaY
‘puads pue sasea Jo "SUCHLUBAISIL| JO SSaUaANaS)e Buyeis manay puUB JUBLWISSassY
a5 95 papaau joN|  jybisiaao juswabeusw pasnpay asealouy o) ubisapay aomes|L 0g 6Ga'g aoge'e "§OIAIDG JUBLISSEsEY | 4d4S 618
"10)385 8IeD al} U] SE3IE
aynads uo pejablie) asealoul
‘saguouine Jaylo ypm sjqeredwod Jopag
*fuea Aew SaDIAI8s JO UDREeDoT] 2INSUS PUE SIE3A OM] ISE] BL)) wiapuadapu| ayy Aq papiaoud
‘SIED GAI@D8) ||I}S |[IM BUSILD| Ul SSESIOU] JO S[3AS] SU} JO M3IA U] anoge ancqe sannes Jof sead “sdnoib juailo e
0no'L 0oo't g 'ON V13| AnngiBys ysuiebe passasse asoy )| §98) UO SOSESIOU| UDHEYL PEjiLT e/ jaul [au $50428-34 YD ALINDWINGD 11V
‘sjuawabuBelE G/ G J1apun '
1sni] uonepuno4 diyslaupeyd
xassng ypm Anuio! palenyep aue ‘Spagl pusSasse JeawW 0} J0Pag
saoes asay) -Aen Aew swesns wapuadapuj ay; Aq papiacad
Buipun; pug sagjaes Jo uocneso 'suopdo paseq Ajunwios S80IA18S BUeD) APUNUILIOT
*81BD SA12081 {|lIS |IM ELSILD Aljuapy pue sjuawied 10810 ‘sjualided 19840 9 218D
0. 0. ¥ 'ON VI3 Ajigibye 1suebe possosse 8504 ]| ©SE8I0U| 'SPOBU DISSOSSE JSay |eju iy 162 SLWOH-U} BB [BJUSIY UlIM S1INPY
mmmw...ﬂm mw_ﬂo_uwm juBUISSaSSY Aunpoddo 3.4 000.3 000.3 {uondpasap
SLYLOZ saniolld { sawooing uo joedu) ; juswiysyiqeiss| yebpng | jabpng .
uomuum_tw nmm%hwnwm_ yoedw; saienbg Buiaeg jo uonduosag {€10] 19N ss015 Jo1g Buipnjoul) aniaieg
JEBA 1IN ’

*GHDIAYTS S1NAv i ealy snInisg



37

*10j03s Alejun|oa pue sjealid
ui saiunpoddo Jayio ajebsaad)
"A)o 8y up uawholdwa 'S89IAI8G S)NpY AQ 80lAI8S
0ol 0s 6 ONVI3| Ppaloddns jo Asanisp uo joedw)| 8y Uf JusunsSaAUl 8anpa) o} ueld|o'g £2E £e2 Hoddng juswwfo|dury
‘s)sod swos "SS8UISNY
10 SS0| 3y} Ul JNSal {Im SIU) uay} mau jeuonppe Bujjesauab
1ebpng sy soueeq o) pajesaual| Ag Avgy Ul Iounoo auyy Ag paiseat ssaulsng
0sz SZ1 papasu 10N 10U s| ssausng mau 3y} J| Apisqns sy sonpai o} ueld|£2Z 805 ]9 papoddng (amey) Bulliam B Siqv
10088 AIBjun|on ay) .
UM Japiaosd seyjoue yinoay)
10 BnuaaA Jayjoue u) papiaosd
aq Aeuwi ‘aDinias Bugisixa el
W0y Juauayp eq ABW anmas sy
"S181R0 J|aU)} Jo spasu passasse| - BuipunyAlaanoss 1SOD asILIXELW
8U) pue "spasu sy} jasW|  'spaau passasse AIOINIe)s 1eall S3IAIBS
0} Aep ay) BuLInp 201A195 B 2A19934| 0] S8DIAISS SAIIBLISYR UDISSILLILIOD Aep sidoad Japjo pue suoydo
0ot 0og 8 'ON VI3 0] 8NURUO [[IM SISSN 3JAIES pue uoisinoid auwos ason|g'¥9 2a/s'lL S00'Z Aep g1 Bupnpu-seoines Aeg
“18pjacad Jayjoue Aq :
palsnBp ag ABW S|y} INq SaaIaS
BA1S081 0} SNURUCD [IM POOMUTIET
map je Buing adosy lepinoad :
aojMas sy, u) 2fusyo e ueaw Aew *10)935s juspuadapu
StU] NG 191 Spaau Passasse aney| ayl Ag papinoid aq LR 'ssaUIsng
0} enuRuoa jjIm Yoju 12 aoines 2409 [IuNnco auy) Jo ped jou
B aAle09) oym 89S0y ‘uoisinoid] ) Uoigym aoiaas doddns [euogipe
Buiddoys Jo Buiplaoid-al o) ma e 210 B Ja0 POOMUDIET MBN jB
Hiim pamaiaal aq |im Wi je pue| pue 1yBiu 1B papiacid Sa0IAIES By
poomyoleT] map Je saojalag "alen ‘gauspusdapuy) asiIXBW
uua) Buo uo asuejal saoNPal| pue SesIAI9Ss JUAWS|GESL 130 jey)
pue souspuadapu) SaSILIXBI|  S8DIAISS SWOH e asuapuadapl) .
U2iym alesswicy Juswa|geal auy Jo Bupuny uiol yBnosyy (awoH e souspusdapuy)
0Gl 0S1L 2 "ON y|3| uc Snonj ||ImM 8DIAISS asnoy-ul ay | aolaas ul ywolb uaaq sey alayl{z LEL £lL8'c oLty Buipniou seamies o) "aien swoH
000.F
sbugaes | 0003 aid 0003 | 000.3
. SLPLOZ uUBWISSaSSY : Ajunuoddp ' y {uopyduosep
51102 paunuapl | Joedw| sagienby S3HlIOH / S3uIoANQ uo joeduw) Buiaeg jo uonduasag Juawysyqejs3| jebpng | jabpng 19y1q Buipnpour) aaniog
joaye | e reg . [1=3 o1 18N SS0I5)
B3 |INd )




+71¥104 SIDNIA¥IS SLINAY

oSt

:mNmz.

swainooid yBnoay Ajunueddo

se saoud JusunD 18 SI2eNUoD ploH

g/u

#05'2

: S]oequUOD g buluorssiuioy

T A gzl |ejo1
s10B5U09 P BuluoIssiuog
"Shjoadsoid -
sjuelb 4o S0UBADPE LI SBIHUNLILIOD
pUE Ukesy aqnd ujim sujquiod
‘sujewad| @) seunpcddo pue suopdwnsse
0z 0z G 'ON VI3 yoeosdde passnooy sawodnQ| aay ‘sanmias A0INeIS LoU MaiASY 1007 z/9'L-  |oog9'z ] Buiuo|ssuwon
“UOJIE U
"51500 JO A18A008] BAOGE S8IJBS [BjUspISal
0z oz 0L 'oNviEa|  uybBnoay siosn aoidas uo Joedw) uou Jo} sabileys asessou)|z 4 6Le goe UM S1oBAUOD
"passNaoy ‘SadAles paseq
8lLoYIN0 9Je SJoBJJUCD SINSUS 0}  SwWoY jo juswseinaoid Jo ynsal e
S 'ON VI3 SJoBLUOD

IE10 ) JOpiACId SHNPY

"Saf}|[B20| $S0.08 puUB

JeaA |ind

38

‘SOIAJSS JO| 821AISS5 BY} SSOIDE LANBS|UILIPE
0g as papeau joN;  yBisieao juawabeuew paonpay pue juswabeuew manay|s gl 665 209 uawebeuep Japiaold
2093 | 000,z
Sbulaes ) LA 000.3 000.3
SLivLOZ JUBWISS3SSY Munpuoddo (uonduosap
Suyioz s8N0l [ S3WOINQ uo oedu) y uawysyige3s3| 3ebpng | 1efipng n|:
revaend ummmc_.u_wnwm_ yedwy saljenbg Suiaeg jo uvonduasag 210, 1eN ss019 18uq Buipn|oui} asialeg

- 9aDIAYTS S1INAY : Boy acllag



6€

APPERDK 4

Budget Strategy: Public Health

This budget area also includes Community Safety and Emergency Prevention,
Preparedness and Response (EPPR).

Strategic financial context and direction of travel

The Public Health spend is currently measured regularly against prescribed
and non-prescribed functions aligned to the national public health outcomes
framework, and it is anticipated that there will be additional future payments
for achievement against the framework.

Currently, the Public Health budget is ring-fenced until April 2016 which
provides a degree of stability, however there are financial pressures on the
Community Safety budget, and to a lesser extent EPPR as for other General
Fund services. Any savings identified within Public Health will be reinvested in
eligible expenditure across council services.

A key plank of the Public Health strategy will be to work with other directorates
to identify shared objectives and outcomes, particularly those identified in the
Public Health Outcomes Framework, and develop joint working, including joint
commissioning initiatives.

Further integration of community safety services with those of Public Health,
Housing, Police, Children's and Aduits services to reduce costs, increase
value for money and contribute to the achievement of corporate outcomes.

We will continue to work with the Clinicai Commissioning Group (CCG) to
identify opportunities to jointly commission programmes for greater efficiency
and effectiveness.

We will review the Public Heaith grant uplift W|th a view to maximising savings.
Delivering the corporate plan
Tackling inequality

Tackling inequality is the bedrock of much of public health and community
safety. Significant areas of work include recommissioning tobacco control
services and healthy weight management. The Health and Wellbeing Board
has established reducing inequalities as an over-riding objective and will be
monitoring progress on this throughout the year. The Public Health Outcomes
Framework includes tackling inequality as a top line objective, and it is likely
that any future public health premium paid to local authorities for good
performance in public health will inciude some reference to reducing
inequalities.

Creating a more sustainable city

The Public Health team works closely with colleagues across the local
authority and beyond to create a more environmental, economic and socially
sustainable city. The team will continue to work on several fronts this year,
contributing to the review of the impact of the 20 mph speed limit, working with
colleagues in housing including private landlord owned properties, and



ov

undertaking health impact assessments on major planning initiatives. The
team will aiso be progressing the work emerging from the Director of Public
Health’s Annual Report for 2012/13 — ‘Happiness, the Eternal Pursuit’ which
links to the One Planet Living Framework where improving Health and
Happiness forms a key programme of action.

Engaging people who live and work in the city

The success of mast of the public health and community safety agenda is
premised on successful community engagement. The team will be looking for
improved synergies across the local authority with other departments who
hold a similar remit on community engagement. Our joint strategic needs
assessment work and our health and wellbeing strategy will continue to have
explicit requirements for meaningful community engagement. We will
continue to run public engagement campaigns around key strands of work,
such as the recent successful Big Parenting Debate and the Big Alcohol
Debate.

Modernising the council

As the public health team becomes established in the local authority we will
be moving to a more local autharity model of practice. The Public Health
Team however do bring an established track record of annual appraisals,
personal development plans and most recently for senior public health staff —
revalidation. This approach ties in very clearly with the Values Framework
which has been established within the local authority in the [ast year.

The team will continue to integrate public health principles and practice by
extending the public heaith realm into the wider local authority. '

Key aspects of the budget strategy
Tackling Inequality

Enhanced services: We will review enhanced service contracts with primary
care/pharmacies to beiter address inequalities and to improve their flexibility
and effectiveness. Consideration will be given to compiling initiatives into a
single Public Health Local Enhanced Scheme (LES).

Tobacco control: There is a current service redesign ongoing in smoking
cessation / tobacco control with new contracts in place from April 2014.
Smoking cessation is considered one of the most cost effective interventions
in public health, however, in the shorter term savings can be delivered by
moving to a payment-by-results framework rather than fixed contract prices.

Weiaght management; The retender for Tier 2 Weight Management Services is
underway. This is an opportunity to test the market and deliver more
comprehensive services across the city within the existing budget. The new
contract should be awarded in December 2013 for April 2014 implementation
of new services.

Alcohol and substance misuse: The alcohol and substance misuse service
redesign is underway and new contracts are planned to be in place in 2013.




144

There could be scope to jointly commission some areas with fellow
commissioners within BHCC, or with commissioners in East and West Sussex
iocal authorities.

Sexual health: The re-procurement for clinical sexual health services is also
underway with new contracts due to commence in April 2015. This will
provide the opportunity to improve value for money and performance and will
investigate the possibility of introducing a local tariff for sexual heaith services.
The procurement will involve a service redesign to provide a more integrated
service which wiil reduce overheads and duplication. '

Crime reduction: We will agree crime reduction and safety priorities with the
Police & Crime Commissioner (PCC) which will secure PCC investment in
those interventions which are of the highest priority for Brighton & Hove.

Victim and Witness services: We will identify early opportunities for joint

commissioning with East and West Sussex including new commissioning
arrangements for Victim and Witness services, which will lead to reduced
costs and efficiency savings.

Creating a more sustainable city

One planet living: We will support the implementation of One Planet Living, in

particular Principle 10 Health and Happiness. This includes several areas
mentioned above as well as the following:

* Mental wellbeing: working jointly with the CCG to ensure that the care
pathway for emotional health and wellbeing includes creative and
effective opportunities for prevention as well as treatment services.

» Physical activity: With several contracts ending in 2015 including Bike
It, Active for Life, Exercise Referrals and Healthwalks, there is potential
fo retender these services in partnership with co-commissioners in
sustainable transport and sports development respectively.

Engaging people who live and work in the city

JSNA engagement: We will use the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
programme (JSNA), overseen by the Health and Wellbeing Board, to inform
the further development and implementation of our budget strategy. Making
effective use of engagement with local people is an integral part of the JSNA
development.

NHS Health checks: We plan to review the current service with a view to
reducing health inequalities as opposed to focusing on numbers offered and
provided with a check.

Health at work: the current model is being reviewed to identify new
opportunities for closer working across directorates for staff within the council
and for wider initiatives throughout the city. '




A7

Modernising the Council

Resilience: We will continue to work with the Communities and Equalities

team to eliminate duplication and reduce costs of commissioned
neighbourhood services.

Improved commissioning: We will continue to build on the initial proposals

identified at our Commissioners’ Network Meeting to support other
directorates delivering the wider public health agenda.



£6 £6

IEJO.L YilesH Jflqnd

“¥10¢ Uer wol} auop ag pjnog
- ed ygz Buiaes - 5ieys ania 10)
pasau ou os dnoib Bupsa)s maney
‘¥LOZ Apea

anp aq | juawded - e/d yg3

196png

Buaes - oadse OHA aNURUoasI Snosue||aosiLu swuelboid
] ] papasN 1oN "FLOZ UB[ WOl :0] [efusjog Uy jou A0 Ageay :senialoe uajusazid (gieusn
.butpniow
+'g 0 0g8.'L MO|ag pagLOsap SeDIAIBS 'SNUBUE|IBOSIN
‘yieap aimewald
pue yjjeay fji Jo sysu
ay) Busnpal Ajuesyiubis ‘Alessaoau JaBue| ou st jno
‘aifisay Ayifeay]  weysAs ay) (o, 0] JojRURI0-00 B LBIP|IYD pUE S)NPE SARDE 1SB|-8Y]
B J0 jualus|s uejodul| pue pspua sey |e-1eyey o) aseyd §0 sjeAs] Ajlapoe ay) Buiseslou) e pawe
6l 6l papasp JoN ue st Ajanoe [exsiyd voijanpoliu; Ausiudonap syt |z'z 0 LEY sjoeljuoo o afuel e - AyaloY leoisAyd
*“HHd Agq panoidde yoeoidde
maN ‘uhdn jabpng Mg Wol awes
PiNo2 poddng ‘sswosino y)jesy
‘Sswonne yyeay|  aaocrdw) pue sjs00 sonpal pinog
anoudwl pue Ayfenbay; safyrenbaw Buonpas uo snooy
oy o papasap 10N aonpal o} paoadxy .0} JOBJJUOD JUSHIND JO YIOMaY|G" L 0 Ot awweiBo.d %98y WeeH SHN
. sawwesbord paseq Ayunwiwoo Buipniou
] g papasu joN ‘Joeduw jeLuus '201AJ85 JO Japualad|e’L 0 £89 'ualp|iya pue synpe 104 saoinas Alsagqo

" 0003
sBulaes
SkivLoz
FLELETTE)
1234 |ing

pspasu j0N

000.3
SLivLOZ
pPaynuapl
sBuireg

joedu)
saljjjenby

ERISERET)

10} puewWep uj asealsut Aue

188l ©) AljIqeu; [BNuSiog

SapUoLy
1 Sawoang uo jaedwy

"synsay Aq juswied o} Buibueys
pue ‘20jAlas Jo Buuapual-ay

Ayunuoddg
Buaeg jo uondisasag

314
Juswysiigelsy
lejor

0003
jefpng
12N

43

000,3 32bpng
55015

oxoeqoy g Bupjows

(uonduosap jauq Bujpn|oul) asinsg

HLTYaH 21Ngnd ! Basy 9oineg




0¢

az

1l 'ON VY3

-sanuoud pue saloono
uo peduw aaelsu o

"PALIEJUIEW 8Q pinoM S0U{0[A
|BNX8S pue asus|oiA 9fjSaLlop JO
SLUROIA 0} 801AIBS JO sjaas) Bupsixa
ay} ‘solnes YAS| pue YAQI 1o}
sjuswabuelle SuluoISsILLILIOD Mau
wiou sBuaes ajessusb of [enusiod

0z

4[4

'S32)N0sal
aund uigim pabeuews aq
0] A[23)j St ING "SDIHUNWILLIOD
yim Aousiedsued

ssa) pue siafeuews Aq
Bupew Uo|SI08p paulou|
uo joedun piNos pue

AjBlES AJUNUILWDD UIyIm
sisAjgue pue Buuojuow
aouewuopad o) Aoedes
paanpal uf }Nsal pinoo sy

-spodas aguewlonad

pue Aojjod ‘sjUBLISSISSE
2165385 'sisAeue uo Buppom
Auof pue flples AUnWoD
pue yjjeaH allgnd usamiaq
sapunuoddo pue syu)| JaBuols jo
BuiBio} au) sa|qeus yjead olgnd
uo aw} Jo %0%-0¢ puads o jeis
Aejes AHUMLIWOD OM] “Uijeal]
alignd yum Ayoeden (eojdjeue
pue asueunopad Bupeys Aq
sja02 Buyeys sonpal o) |Bjus10d

0z

000.3
sBuiaes
Skivioe
JLBGI-ITE
lea, |ind

SLivLoZ

papijuap!

sBuineg

0003

Ll "ON VId

papaau JON

joeduy
sapienb3

sanuoud pue selenno
uo joedul salebau oN

SaRUoHd
| sawasnQ uo jpeduy

‘anejd 8oe|ed
£ 1e ses|waid jo %02 Adrnooo
MOU OYM S3IIAIBT S,UBIPIIYD YlIM
sasjwaid jo Buyeys o) anp ussue
sey s1soo al jsuiebe Bues y

Aunuoddg
Buiaeg jo uondlaasag

=T
Jusuiys|qeIsy
|ejoL

000.3
jebpng
1N

44

0003 18Bpng
§50.19)

Alajes Ajunwiwiod

oy Bupejas Juswebebus 9)gnd pue asnsiw
20uUBlEqns ‘'uopuasald sl [esisAyd
‘aanenl yinoA ‘uoges)|eopel fupuassid
'sjuapIoul 2jeY pue gy ‘sl pue uswom
1sueBe aous|oiA ‘eouaoin JRSBLIOP
‘Buipnjoul S80USS UORINPal BLILD

pue Ajajes Ajunwiwon a1od jo Aaayap|:
PUE LojRUIpIC-03 'BUlUoISSILLWOTD
)

{uonduossp joliag Buipnjoun) asjaseg

HLYAH D9 N D Bdly 8318188



IYLOLHLIYAH drand
1ej01 Ayayeg Ajunwwon)

"AJIUNUILWIOD 198418 BY) O} SaDjAIas
punase deim spioid o) siapiaocid
lojoas panyy Buuorssitiwes Apuiol
Buisnoy pue Ajajes Aunwiwos

AqQ 310M YoRaAN0 UO BpewW

8g pinod Bulaes B 80UBJSUI 1811 U]
u| ‘A)sjes AJunwiwod pue yeay

"BWOOING SanunLLIcT) ‘Buisnoy ‘aoijod Aq Ajsieiedas
aleg pue aAISBYO) PAUOISSILILLICD 852 AJLNWICS
0z 74 L "ON Wil Uo Asaliep aantaya alopy| 1921S 8y} 0} SIHAISS J0J0aS pIuL

‘wea; Aojod jo
Jualuaa juawsbebus Aunwwos
Joy sagiunyoddo juswabebua

‘sde|lano Agunwiaos 1apim dojaasp

ul suononpal Aq payebgiu 0} AljIgesIp pue seunuucD
8q A2 S|} JNg Jusrald Yiley ‘g g o} syu) Buoys
pue Alajes AyunLiLuco pue agusuadxa juswabebua

104 Ayoedes juawsbeliua Aunwwes Buans ypm s1aoyjo
paonpeal o} pes| os|e oM} ‘Lies| ADyod s,)lounoo auy)

pinoa )| ‘wes] Aoyod 8yl UM S]SOD YEIS BUIID DB pUE
40} Juawalfebus Aunwiwod]  Jusaald Jo Juswals uawebebua
0} Bupe|s) asueunopad Anunwwoo Buueys Ag

ae SL Ll "ON VI3 Ppaoidul o} pes| jpm siyl|  s1s00 Bulyers sonpai o} jenusiod
‘slapinoad Buisnoy Bujbisyoal

10 Aunuoddo ajqissod syg uum|-
pas||jewJoj pue papuaa Bueg

S| Ja0 S|y "siapiacad Buisnoy o)
"anuaj Jo ssajpselad| aouepinb pue poddns jeuoisssjoid)

A9 sy Uy swuoiA B)eH awos saplaoud Apealje
pUe gSy J40j S8L0o)No wes| gsy 'Sisod ye)s 19510

0l & LL 'ON VI3 Jeylaq ulnsal ||IM S| 0} 4Bis gev Aq pejelausl swoouy)

000.3 .
sBujaes | 0003 314 000.3
: SLYL0Z | joedw saNlioLd Ajunpoddp ~o |000.3126png

§HyLoT paynuapt| sanyenbz { s8Wwo2INQ uo Joeduw) Buiaeg jo uopduiasag Juswysyqejsa| abpng S50I0 (uonduosap ya11q Bujpniow) eajareg

jo30aya o eg ) lejog BN

JEBA [IN4 )

HITVIH OI18Nd i £aly 80IAIsg

45



o



Appendix 5

The Care Bill and the NHS/Social Care Better Care Fund(previously
known as Integrated Transformation Fund)

The Care Bill is currently in the House of Lords and is expected to receive
Royal Assent some time in May 2014. It represents the most profound change
to adult social care framework, since the National Assistance Act 1948. The
bill will repeal most of the legislation that has been implemented since then
and will replace this with a range of new legislation and statutory guidance.
The changes that will follow include:

» The cap on care costs proposed following the Dilnott review. The current
level of the cap is being suggested at £76k over a person’s lifetime and is
based on a financial assessment — depending on whether they receive
residential or home based support.

* A requirement for councils to assess on an annual basis all adults who
receive care to determine whether their needs meet the national eligibility
criteria. The national criteria are expected to be broadly in line with the
council’s current local eligibility criteria which is based on critical or substantial
needs.

« All eligible adults will need to have a Care Account set up so that the council
can track their spend (against agreed cost profiles) and determine when they
meet the cap. This will mean an annual assessment and review process for a
much wider group of adults than is currently the case, including those self-
funding their residential or home based care. These changes are being
planned to commence in April 2015, with assessments of current self funders
commenced in 2014/15.

* Putting safeguarding of adults on a statutory footing.

* New rights and entitlements for carers to receive appropriate assessment of
their needs and support.

The long term financial consequences for the council are impossible to assess
at this stage and will depend on the national funding model, the city’s
demographic profile and the wealth of residents, particularly in terms of
property values. However there are substantial costs that need to be incurred
now to ensure that the system can operate from 1 April 2015, including
increased resources for assessment of both care and finance needs,
technological investment to establish the Care Accounts and effective
communications.

As well as the care cap there are other important changes in the Care Bill
including putting safeguarding of adults on a statutory footing, with the bill
carers will have new rights and entitlements to receive appropriate
assessment of their needs and support by new burdens funding from central
government, there is always a real risk that this will be insufficient to meet the
costs.

In the July Spending Review, the government announced £3.8bn per annum
nationally from 2015/16 for an Integrated Transformation Fund (ITF) across
adult social care and health. £1.9 billion of this funding is already in local
authorities in the existing NHS Funding for Social Care or in other sources of
grant funding such as Carers Grant and Disabled Facilities Grant. The council

47



Appendix 5

needs to have joint plans with the clinical commissioning group (CCG) on how
we will collectively spend this money. This funding is an ambitious programme
to better join up health and social care in order to reduce pressure on the
acute sector — in particular emergency admissions. The requirements are still
emerging for this funding but it certainly includes 7 day a week working across
the health and social care system. It will cover the range of services that
support discharges from hospital and prevent admissions especially out of
hours, require whole systems change across local authority boundaries and
will be dependent on improved information sharing across health and social
care. The City expects to receive approximately £1 million in 2014/15 to
support preparations for 2015/16. We believe 50% will be received at the start
of the year with the remainder based on performance.

The scale of these changes and the service, financial and reputational risks
associated with them are enormous. If successful then the ITF in particular
could be a crucial part of the council’s response to dealing with ongoing
funding reductions and pressures on adult social care and should lead to
lower numbers of individuals in long term residential and nursing home care. If
it proves more challenging to deliver the required results then the council
potentially could see increased financial risks, particularly if the NHS and the
acute hospital trust are unable to show the anticipated savings on which the
funding transfer to the council so depends.

One off resources of £0.5m has provisionally been set aside in the council’s
budget to facilitate the changes from the Care Bill and ITF changes, some of
which is likely to be covered by new burdens funding from government but
there is too much uncertainty for a change of this scale for the council not to
plan ahead and set aside funding to ensure it can be implemented effectively.

' The above text is an extract from Appendix 3 of the Budget Update and savings 2014/15
report to Policy and Resources Committee 5 December 2013

48



ADULT CARE & HEALTH Agenda Item 51

COMMITTEE Brighton & Hove City Council

Subject: Community Short Term Services — an update

Date of Meeting: 20 January 2014

Report of: Chief Operating Officer, Brighton & Hove Clinical
Commissioning Group and Executive Director Adult
Services

Contact Officer: Name: Gill Brooks Tel: 01273 574635

Email: Gill.brooks1@nhs.net

Ward(s) affected: All

FOR GENERAL RELEASE

1.

1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

3.1

PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT

The Community Short Term Services (CSTS) provides a range of health and
social care services that provide rapid assessment and time limited support to:
a. Prevent avoidable hospital attendances and/ or admissions;
b. Support people to recover from a spell of illness/injury following a stay in
acute hospital; and
c. Maximise a person’s independence through rehabilitation and reablement.

There are two purposes to the report:

a. To propose changes to Independence at Home ( the Council’s directly
provided home care service) as a result of developments in the home
care element of CSTS; and

b. Provide a general update on CSTS including those areas highlighted in
the June 2013 report.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Adult Care & Health Committee are asked to agree the proposals for
Independence at Home to concentrate on providing short-term reablement
services and to withdraw from providing services at New Larchwood.

Adult Care & Health Committee is asked to note this general update on
Community Short Term Services.

CONTEXT/ BACKGROUND INFORMATION

CSTS is provided by:

a. Brighton and Hove City Council (Knoll House and Craven Vale);

b. Sussex Community NHS Trust (home based services and in-reach to
Knoll House and Craven Vale for nursing and therapies, and in-reach to
Highgrove for therapy);

c. Age UK Brighton and Hove (Crisis and day sitting);

d. Integrated Care 24 Ltd (roving GP and out of hours district nursing);

49



41

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

e. Victoria Nursing Homes Group (Highgrove); and
f. Brighton and Sussex University Hospitals NHS Trust (Care of the Elderly
Consultants).

HOME CARE SERVICE

A multi-agency group was established to look at the arrangements for
commissioning home care within CSTS. The purpose of this group was to:
a. Ensure that all home care provision for service users with short term
needs was used optimally; and
b. Explore the inter-relationships between services, and make suggestions
for improvements.

It was established that the home care team in CSTS were struggling to cope with
the demand for their service and as a result additional temporary support was
being provided by an independent agency (Mi-Home care), in order to meet
demand.

The Independence at Home team (home care directly provided by the Council)
are specifically trained to provide a reablement service and these skills were well
matched to the needs of the CSTS team. The majority of their work is short term
and generated from hospital discharge but not all the cases they receive have a
reablement need. They also provide:
a. Support to community assessment teams;
b. End of life care;
c. The care element of Extra Care housing at New Larchwood including a 24
hour on-site staff team;
d. A Community night service operating from 19.30 to 07.30; and
e. Care to a small number of long-term service users with very complex
needs.

Independence at Home has a high success rate for achieving good outcomes
through reablement and the team has been concentrating on short term work for
several years in order to optimise the skills of staff and the make the best use of
resources.

To offer service users a more streamlined service, and to make the best use of

existing resources, the CSTS Project Board agreed that Independence at Home
and the CSTS home based care team should become one team, integral within

the CSTS model.

There are 4 main implications for the decision:

a. Independence at Home: the team will focus on the provision of short
term reablement services

b. New Larchwood: As Independence at Home focus on CSTS work it will
be necessary to withdraw from providing care at New Larchwood. To
enable this to move forward, the care element at New Larchwood would
need to be provided by an independent provider. (See section 5 below).

c. Home care staff in CSTS: A consultation will take place with staff from
the home based care team in CSTS about their transfer into the
Independence at Home team. Protocols for clear and robust

50



4.7

4.8

4.9

5.1

5.11

51.2

51.3

5.2

5.21

5.2.2

5.2.3

communication will need to be agreed to ensure that the homecare
service remains integrated with the other elements of CSTS.

d. Charging: Currently people are subjected to a financial assessment and
may contribute to the cost of Independence at Home, but people who
receive CSTS homecare do so free of charge which is inequitable. This
model will require the Independence at Home service to be free of charge
for service users of CSTS for up to 6 weeks. This issue is also covered
within the separate report on charging to Adult Care & Heath Committee.

An element of Independence at Home would continue to provide a service to
enable Adult Social Care to fulfil its statutory duties.

Advantages of the proposed changes to home care services in CSTS:

a. Having one integrated home care team within CSTS will enable a more
streamlined approach to reabling home care;

b. This will reduce inequality for service users;

c. There will be increasing levels of co-operation and joint working between
the health & social care organisations working within the CSTS team; and

d. Pathways between the different disciplines and organisations will be clear
and direct, and duplication of effort should be reduced.

A project plan has been created to scope the next steps to take this work forward
in the coming months with a target date of April 2014 for amalgamation of the
home care team.

NEW LARCHWOOD

Background information

There are 39 flats at New Larchwood extra care housing facility. The building is
owned by Hanover Housing Association.

The ‘Extra Care’ element of New Larchwood is currently provided by a
combination of Independence at Home (I@H) Brighton and Hove City Council
(BHCC) in house domiciliary care team and private providers

The care provided to service users living in NLW is generally longer term as
opposed to short term reablement.

New Larchwood Service User Information

Tenants at New Larchwood range between 63 and 100 years of age. The
average age is approximately 75 years. Profile of needs include people with a
physical disability, learning disability, alcohol dependency, mental health
requirements and age-related frailty.

I@H currently provides care to 22 of the 36 tenants (269 hours per week.) In total
8 tenants receive support from Independent Providers.

The average care package for tenants is 12.2hrs per week, with the lowest care
package at 0.25hrs and the highest being 45.50hrs.

51



524

5.2.5

5.2.6

5.3

5.3.1

5.3.2

5.3.3

5.4

5.41

54.2

5.5

There are three care packages that are split and have support from both
Independent providers and BHCC I@H service. I@H provides the night calls.

Due to increased dependency of tenants and demands for increased hours of
care, some tenants were reviewed and now have their care packages provided
by an independent care provider.

The mix of different providers that has developed over time has created some
confusion for service users and other professionals working at New Larchwood.

New Larchwood Staffing

Staff from I@H are available at New Larchwood to provide care over a 24 hour
period. Service users have an allocated care package, but may require some
assistance in between calls.

A total of 22 staff currently work at NLW. This is broken down into 7 night staff
and 15 day staff. In addition there are currently 3 vacancies on days.

Management and administration time is also allocated to NLW however this is
managed via the main homecare service.

Proposals for a new model of care at New Larchwood

Section 4 of this report outlines the reason for considering a new model of care at
New Larchwood. Members are asked to agree the proposals for Independence at
Home to concentrate on providing short-term reablement services and to
withdraw from providing long term services at New Larchwood.

This will mean that an alternative new care service at New Larchwood will have
to be commissioned for service users using the Council’s tendering process. The
current home care contractual arrangements for the city allow for the framework
providers to take on extra care work if it is within the district locality where they
are the main district provider. This allows for a hub and spoke model to develop
in the locality of New Larchwood (Coldean area).

Implications for service users and staff at New Larchwood if the service is
tendered to a private provider

a. Service users will be assured that they will continue to have their needs
met, although the care will be provided by another provider.

b. The transfer of the extra care work to another framework provider is likely
to be a TUPE event for the purposes of the Transfer of Undertakings
(Protection of Employment Regulations. A TUPE event occurs where a
‘distinct undertaking’ (e.g. work location, work unit, team) changes
contractor or ownership.

c. This would mean that, based on current staffing, 22 contracted council
employees (14.4 FTE) would potentially be entitled to transfer to the new
provider on their current terms and conditions. This may make the contract
less attractive to independent providers as organisations cannot opt out of
TUPE if it applies.

52



5.6

5.7

5.71

6.1

6.1.1

6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

d. Staff covered by TUPE but who do not want to transfer to another provider
could potentially have the opportunity to apply for vacant posts across the
council (which may include vacancies in the I@H service). Consideration
would need to be given to supporting staff in a recruitment and selection
process. If a transferring employee commenced in an alternative council
post outside of New Larchwood prior to the point of transfer they would not
transfer to the new provider.

Benefits for service users & staff:

a. This is a tried and tested model and has been adopted successfully by
many other Local Authorities across the UK and a private provider is
contracted to provide care at Patching Lodge.

b. Service users can be involved in the service specification and selection
process for the new provider.

c. This option offers the least risk, since it would be tied into a clear
specification with a dedicated service provider bound by a contract that
BHCC can enforce.

Budget savings and New Larchwood

The proposals for savings in Adult Social Care budget for 14/15 includes
proposed savings of £150k in 2014/15 from New Larchwood.

COMMUNITY SHORT TERM SERVICES UPDATE
Knoll House

Knoll House has 20 intermediate care beds provided for CSTS. From March
2013 until November 2013 Knoll House was only open to 12 beds due to
safeguarding concerns and work needed to address the Care Quality
Commission (CQC) improvement plan. A recent CQC visit (September 2013)
stated that Knoll House was fully compliant with all eight standards and the
establishment is now working at full capacity.

Needs Assessment Audit

The commissioners regularly monitor the CSTS to ensure it continues to fulfil the
needs of the service users and that there is the right balance between beds and
home based services and appropriate skill mix. A needs assessment audit was
carried out in January 2012 focussing on bed based services and a re-audit was
undertaken in August 2013 on all aspects of the CSTS.

Although it is recognised that the demographic population of Brighton and Hove
does not reflect the regional older population growth, the city has a relatively
larger group of people living in isolation who are more vulnerable and dependent
on public services' including CSTS. The audit did show that most service users
were female and over 75 years old.

! Brighton and Hove Information Service 2012 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment Chapter 7.3
http://www.bhlis.org/jsna2012

53



6.2.3

6.2.4

6.2.5

6.2.6

6.2.7

6.2.8

6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

6.4

6.4.1

Most users of CSTS were referred for rehabilitation post-operatively or following
a fall. The outcomes were favourable with the majority of patients maximising
independent living and returning to or remaining in their usual place of residence.

For both nursing and therapy support in CSTS, the most intensity required was 2-
3 visits/ reviews per day with the majority just requiring 1 visit/ review each day
for nursing and 1-2 visits/ reviews per week for therapy.

One of the main findings was that the social and personal care element of a
service user’'s needs was extremely important to them achieving their goals and
being discharged from CSTS. In the audit, 80% of the patients benefitted from
this level of care.

The findings from this audit will be used to improve the CSTS model further. This
will include further resource in home based services, social care and reablement
to provide proactive prevention and ultimately reducing unavoidable hospital
attendances and provide a step-down to CSTS bed based services, as well as
supporting early discharge from the acute sector.

The recommendations following the audit are:

a. To review the pathways from the acute to CSTS;

b. To review the admission and discharge processes within CSTS;

c. To continue to improve the model to reflect user needs that ensures
patients can remain in their own home as much as possible, wrapped
around the patient, the right care at the right time in the right place;

d. To ensure that the resources and workforce are available to achieve the
optimum model; and

e. To ensure learning from the needs assessment informs the future frailty
model within Brighton and Hove.

Consideration was given to developing additional beds at Craven Vale Resource
Centre. This is not being taken forward as the focus is on growing community
services rather that developing more bed based services. Currently other
options are being considered for Craven Vale.

Clinical governance

The committee are asked to note there is agreement with regards clinical
governance arrangements, and roles and responsibilities within CSTS.

The service specification has been re-drafted to ensure there is clarity about
roles, responsibilities and accountability, in particular for the medical
accountability and roles and responsibilities for in-reach services to the beds.

Service improvements
In December 2012 Age UK (Brighton and Hove) commenced a dementia day
sitting service pilot as part of the CSTS. The success of this pilot resulted in the

CCG formally commissioning this service from June 2013 and extending it to
include all day sitting needs not just those people with dementia.

54



6.4.2

6.4.3

6.5

6.5.1

6.5.2

6.5.3

6.6

6.6.1

6.6.2

6.6.3

The medium term (next two years) commissioning intentions include an
integrated model of care for frail people in Brighton and Hove. This will mean the
development of an overall system of care centred round keeping frail and/ or
vulnerable people well in the community. Significant work has already been done
to improve the frailty pathway in Brighton and Hove (for example, development of
Integrated Primary Care Teams, to provide a more holistic model of care and
Care of the Elderly Consultants supporting community patients). However the
approach that has been taken has been relatively piecemeal and whilst there
have been improvements to the range of services and collaboration between
providers; the system of care does not always provide seamless holistic care and
there continues to be demand on acute services. This proposed development will
include people cared for within CSTS.

In December 2013 the Independence at Home team commenced joint working
with CSTS by assisting with in-coming work where referrals started to exceed
capacity. This is enabling pathways and communication to be “tested” and
refined as well as increasing capacity within CSTS homecare ahead of the team
becoming one.

Service Developments

The services have been working on a number of service improvements involving
patient flow through the system.

One example of this is the development of both a bed based and home based
CSTS escalation flow diagram. This outlines the trigger points in the system
when a number of patients waiting for CSTS services reach a certain level there
are clear actions and responsibilities that are followed.

Another example is the formation of a discharge planning task and finish group
and subsequent action plan. This has enabled the bed based services to pilot
new ways of working, such as daily board rounds, multi-disciplinary meetings
with patients and carers/ family, as well as the establishment of a dependency
tool.

Quality monitoring

There is a monthly CSTS Board meeting with representation from the joint
commissioners in BHCC as well as all providers and a representative from
Healthwatch.

The Board recognised the importance of including quality assurance in the
monitoring of the service to ensure that service users are well supported in their
journey through all elements of the service. Both the CCG and Adult Social Care
jointly work together to monitor care governance and quality.

A quality part of the agenda has been established and the membership of the
Board now includes the Lead Nurse, Director of Clinical Quality & primary Care,
a Care of the Elderly Consultant and a Lead Nurse for community services. The
key performance indicators associated with quality are currently being agreed.

55



6.7 Winter/ surge planning

6.7.1 The CSTS recognises its importance in supporting secondary care, Brighton and
Sussex University Hospitals NHS Trust and other community and social care
services during the winter surge which often results in increased demand.

6.7.2 CSTS has increased resources and capacity. The CSTS winter projects include:
Additional resource in Community Rapid Response Service (CRRS);
Additional social worker resource in CRRS;

Additional resource in Age UK Brighton and Hove crisis service;

Extended roving GP hours;

Additional night sitting service;

Dedicated transport for CSTS patients to support discharge;

Additional homecare capacity; and

4 additional short term service beds.

SQ@moo0TY

6.7.3 All the projects will be monitored and measured to ensure they relieve the
pressure within the system.

6.8 Summary of any on-going work

6.8.1 The Committee are asked to note that the commissioners have mechanisms in
place to assure that the service delivers quality care and continues to have
sufficient capacity to meet demand. The on-going work includes:

a. Sign off of the service specification by CSTS Board;

b. Monitoring and evaluation of the surge/ winter projects;

c. Homecare consultation and implementation; and

d. Aligning any service improvements to the integration agenda.

7 ANALYSIS & CONSIDERATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

7.1 Considerable work had been undertaken by health & social care professionals to
redesign services to make them more accessible to individuals, and to reduce
handoffs and duplication.

8 COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT & CONSULTATION

8.1  The Brighton and Hove CCG and Adult Social Care engage with the residents of
the city on a regular basis. The CCG meet with Healthwatch on a quarterly basis
discussing key commissioning themes and intentions that include community
services. A summary document on all draft commissioning intentions will be sent
to Patient Participation Groups across the city over the coming months.

9. CONCLUSION
9.1  The committee is asked to agree the proposals concerning Independence at
Home to ensure it makes the best use of resources, promotes increased joint

working, and results in the more streamlined service to the individual.

9.2 The committee is asked to note and consider the update on CSTS.

56



10.
101

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

It is anticipated that the recommendation for Independence at Home to
concentrate on providing short-term reablement services and to withdraw from
providing services at New Larchwood will deliver improved value for money and
contribute to the Home Care savings proposals included in the BHCC budget
strategy which is subject to approval by Budget Council in February 2014.

The total cost for the winter/ surge projects for CSTS is £694,000 and additional
funding has been identified and allocated as follows in table one:

Winter/Surge Funding £k Allocated to

Winter Contingency - funding held by CCG

Additional resource in Community Rapid Response Service (CRRS) 105 | SCT*

Additional social worker resource in CRRS 100 | BHCC

Additional resource in Age UK Brighton and Hove crisis service 20 | AUK**

Additional homecare capacity 75 | BHCC
300

Reablement Fund - funding held by CCG

Additional short term service beds 190

Winter/ surge central money - joint bid funding

Extended roving GP hours 42 | 1C24***

Additional night sitting service 47 | IC24

Dedicated transport for CSTS patients to support discharge 40 | SMS****

Additional resource in CRRS to supplement above 75 | SCT
204

Total Funding 694

Table One: summary of winter/ surge projects costs

*SCT — Sussex Community NHS Trust
**AUK — Age UK (Brighton and Hove)
***|C24 — Integrated Care 24 Ltd
***SMS — Sussex Medical Services

Finance Officer Consulted: Michelle Herrington
Finance Officer Consulted: Debra Crisp

Legal Implications:

Date: 06/01/2014
Date: 06/01/2014

CSTS is a jointly commissioned service so that approval of the recommendations
in this report is required from both the Council and CCG.

The re-commissioning of the extra care services at New Larchwood has both

contractual and employment implications.

From a contractual perspective, the services are classed as ‘Part B’ by the EU
Procurement Rules. This means that the process of awarding the work to a new

57



10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

provider or new providers must be fair and transparent. The Council’s Contract
Standing Orders (CSQ’s) require that all contracts for social care services are
able to demonstrate value for money. The use of the existing Framework
Agreement to appoint a new provider or providers will ensure that these
requirements are satisfied.

The legal position in relation to the current BHCC employees is set out in the
body of the report at paragraphs 5.5 a-d. In summary, it is likely that TUPE will
apply, giving staff an entitlement to transfer to any new provider or providers.

Lawyer Consulted: Sandra O’'Brien Date: 07/01/2014

Equalities Implications:

The commissioning of CSTS is a key element of the Mental Health and
Community Services Commissioning Plan for the CCG which has been subject to
a full equalities impact assessment. The model for CSTS strives to improve
equity, creating a new more streamlined, efficient, tailored and effective service
to improve patient outcome and experience.

Sustainability Implications:

The commissioning of CSTS ensures a sustainable model of care which will
make a positive on-going contribution to preventing inappropriate admissions and
facilitating effective discharge. Any future development of existing estate within
the city will take due account of sustainability implications in line with the LA
sustainability principles and duties. The proposal for New Larchwood makes the
best use of resources and enables Independence at Home to concentrate on
reablement and rehabilitation services.

Any Other Significant Implications:
No other significant implications to note.

Crime & Disorder Implications:
There are no crime and disorder implications arising from this work.

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:

Commissioning level risks are recorded via CCG risk management systems and
monitored by the internal Project Management Office at the CCG as well as at
the CSTS board.

Public Health Implications:

The CSTS is focused on prevention and aims to avoid and reduce the severity of
patient illness, improving both patient outcomes in addition to being more
efficient. The inclusion of the integrated CRRS and Independence at Home
ensures service users who do require intervention receive this in a timely and
more effective way improving outcomes and reducing the need for long term
care.

Corporate / Citywide Implications:
The CSTS continues to have a positive impact on all wards of the city, reducing
inequalities and improving patient outcomes and experience.

58



SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

None

59






ADULT CARE & HEALTH Agenda ltem 52
COMMITTEE (JOINTLY Brighton & Hove City Council
COMMISSIONED

SECTION 75) BUSINESS

Subject: Integrated Community Equipment Service
Date of Meeting: 20" January 2014
Report of: Executive Director of Adult Services

Chief Operating Officer, Brighton & Hove Clinical
Commissioning Group

Contact Officer: Name: Anne Richardson-Locke Tel: 29-0379

Email: Anne.richardson-locke@brighton-hove.gcsx.gov.uk

Ward(s) affected: All

1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

3.1

PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT

The report provides an update to Committee on the joint work that is taking place
between Brighton & Hove City Council (B&HCC) and Brighton & Hove Clinical
Commissioning Group (CCG) and Sussex Community NHS Trust (SCT) to
determine the future of the Integrated Community Equipment Service (ICES).

The equipment service is commissioned jointly between B&HCC and the CCG.
The service has been provided via a Section 75 agreement with SCT since 2004.
SCT manages the integrated service, delivering daily living and community
health equipment to adults and children.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That Committee note the contents of the report that B&RHCC and the CCG will be
named in the OJEU contract notice published by WSCC as an authority that may
utilise the contractual arrangements that WSCC will put in place, during the life of
the contract; and that whilst this provides an opportunity to benefit from the
procurement process run by WSCC, this does not mean a commitment on the
part of B&HCC or the CCG to purchase any particular services.

That Committee agree for Commissioners to continue to work closely with SCT
to enable B&HCC and the CCG to measure their current performance against the
targets in the service specification and also to identify accurate unit costs and the
costs of an alternative building, as set out in section 4.

CONTEXT/ BACKGROUND INFORMATION

A report on ICES was presented to Adult Care & Health Committee in September
2013 setting out various options for the future delivery of the service. The report
recommended Option 4 which was to formally approach West Sussex County
Council (WSCC) to discuss the feasibility of working in collaboration to tender for
a new service model for the provision of community equipment services. This

61



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

option highlighted the time pressures as WSCC were recommending to their
Cabinet in December 2013 that they commence a tender for an equipment
service and this could be a good opportunity to collaborate.

Members asked for more information and were keen that a map be included in a
future report and this is attached as Appendix 1. There were also questions
about the Shoreham Harbour development and the impact this may have on the
ICES building. The Shoreham Harbour Development Manager has reported that
in terms of timescales for the development the earliest proposals are estimated
to come forward in 3-5 years. Members also asked about the tracking and
recycling of equipment and how it is collected and reported on and this data is
still outstanding, see 3.5.2 below.

Committee agreed the following:

(1) That Option 4 of the report be agreed: To enable Adult Social Care and
Brighton and Hove Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) to formally approach
West Sussex County Council to discuss the feasibility of working in collaboration
to tender for a new service model for the provision of community equipment
services.

(2) That until such time as a new contract is awarded, it is agreed that services
shall continue to be delivered with Sussex Community NHS Trust (SCT), and that
commissioners will work with SCT to develop the requirements of the existing
service specifications.

(3) That a further report be presented to the Committee at its meeting on 25
November. In the meanwhile, a site visit should be arranged for Members.

A visit to the ICES store was arranged for Members on 19™ November and was
attended by 4 Members. Members were given a tour of the building by the
Service Development Manager, Assistant Manager and Operations Manager and
saw the main storage area and decontamination area.

West Sussex County Council tender

Discussions have started with WSCC as agreed by Committee, and although
some early conversations have proven to be helpful, Adult Social Care and the
CCG are not in a position to actively participate in the competitive dialogue
process being run by WSCC at the present time due to the timing of that process.
Nevertheless WSCC are proposing to procure a Framework Contract, which
would enable B&HCC and the CCG to call off a contract from that Framework at
a later date.

To enable this possibility BHCC is to be named on the WSCC OJEU Contract
Notice tender. If Committee did wish to pursue this option in the future the
advantage would be that BHCC wouldn’t have to engage in a full procurement
exercise. This would therefore be more cost effective. It must be emphasised
that this does not commit BHCC to purchase any particular services under the
WSCC Framework, but it permits this potential option being available alongside
all other options for consideration at a later date. Not including BHCC would
remove the possibility of utilising the WSCC Framework at any point in the future.

WSCC intend to commence the tender process in January 2014, award the
contract in September 2014 and start the new contract in April 2015.

62



3.8

3.9

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.1

6.1

A recommendation about whether or not to use the WSCC Framework can only
be made once we have been able to obtain accurate information about the unit
costs of the current service, together with details of recycling and expenditure
against specific items and by specific teams. SCT has agreed to work
collaboratively with the commissioners to help identify this information.

Consultation with current and future customers and prescribers is required to
identify what the local needs are, particularly around self assessment and self
purchase, and soft market testing is also needed to identify what providers are in
the market and any potential costs.

ANALYSIS & CONSIDERATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

As agreed by Committee Commissioners from B&HCC and the CCG are
continuing to work closely with ICES to develop the requirements of the existing
service specification. Discussions about the performance of this service have
been taking place since 2011 and a service specification with Key Performance
Indicators was produced in 2012 and refreshed in 2013. Commissioners will
closely monitor performance against this specification before making a
recommendation about the future of the service.

The September Committee paper reported a 30% initial recycling rate which was
a figure produced by SCT as at the time 70% of the equipment that they were
purchasing was new rather than recycled. SCT have also reported that in the
region of 90-95% of items are recycled but on further investigation this figure
relates to the recycling of items that are collected and therefore is a lower figure.
More recent data indicates that the recycling levels have improved but further
analysis is needed before producing accurate collection and recycling data.

B&HCC and the CCG will explore what equipment services will be required in the
future .This will include talking to current and future customers and prescribers.
COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT & CONSULTATION

No community engagement or consultation has been carried out other than the
regular service user satisfaction surveys and prescriber surveys collected by
ICES.

CONCLUSION

That further joint work is needed with SCT to identify their current performance,
accurate unit costs and the costs of an alternative building before making
decisions about the future of the equipment service.

FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

Financial Implications:

63



71

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

The 2013/14 jointly commissioned budget for ICES is £1.420m, of which
£0.799m (56%) is funded by Health and £0.641m (44%) by Adult Social Care.

As noted in the report, further work is needed to fully understand the unit costs of
the ICES service in order to help make an informed decision on any change in
future service provision.

Finance Officer Consulted: Mike Bentley Date: 17/12/13

Legal Implications:

When reviewing service provision, the Council has a legal duty to deliver Best
Value. Members need to take into account the overall value of the service,
including economic, environmental and social value,

The EU Procurement Rules also require that the principles of fairness and
transparency are applied to any process leading up to the award of a new
contract for services of this nature.

It is considered that the Recommendations set out above comply with these
requirements.

Lawyer Consulted: Name Jill Whittaker Date: 06d/01/14

Equalities Implications:

An Equalities Impact Assessment will be carried out to ensure that equalities
issues are considered in the development of any future model.

Sustainability Implications:

There are sustainability implications within this report. The decontamination and
recycling of equipment is essential for any equipment service and commissioners
will continue to work with SCT to identify accurate collection and recycling data.
In addition, sustainability implications will need to be considered when deciding
on the future of any buildings and delivery system.

64



SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendix 1

1. Map locating ICES building.

ﬁﬁldner HE — . . = _1-9. -- 65, r =
: ) |~ %= Lincoln R ;‘g: -, g :;‘;:'r §
(—— — I $ Bikram Yugan & f, E ;
: 1 = 3 4
i EE T.ﬂ.ubynggd :-_:_ E Ersih'rookﬂd 2 i 3 q_"“-—ﬁ_h_ A
L-F o \ '. —— .--uq_- ----- i 4
& E %‘E — -."Gowu.-,n:m"' 5 / f ' [t
N s E: g § stneholashd. /| Poﬂsladeilnited@, /)
|”==.=i- y "g» . 2 % 3 - Fhefcn'ﬁed Church
i T8Ot/ -
.~ 9 i I g St Michaelshd-. 4ﬁdrewgm ,»)Spot Studia 1]
T - 2
S r B

Skip-It
— Eu:tahm

e B The California
RS o) St
s

= :_;i.-,'al.'e.:nd-?»:'—: -

65






ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND Agenda Item 53

HEALTH COMMITTEE Brighton & Hove City Council
Subject: Commissioning Grants Prospectus

Date of Meeting: 20™ January 2014

Report of: Executive Director Adult Social Care and Health

Chief Operating Officer, Brighton & Hove Clinical
Commissioning Group

Contact Officer: Name: Debbie Greening Tel: 295739

Email: Debbie.greening@brighton-hove.gcsx.gov.uk

Ward(s) affected: All

FOR GENERAL RELEASE

1.1

1.2

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT:

The second annual Adult Social Care & Health Commissioning Grants
Prospectus was published in May 2013 bringing together investment from
different parts of the Council (Adult Social Care, Public Health and Communities)
and the Clinical Commissioning Group.

This report gives details of the procurement process, the outcomes and funding
awards that have resulted from this process and services that will be in place
from 1% April 2014 for 3 years.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That Committee note Adult Social Care Commissioning Prospectus funding
agreement awards as detailed in Point 3.11.

RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY
EVENTS

The Adult Social Care Prospectus is aimed at the voluntary & community sector
and is designed to develop local services that promote and improve the health,
social care and well-being of people living in the city.

The Prospectus was produced by Adult Social Care working in partnership with
commissioning colleagues from Public Health, Corporate Performance,
Equalities and Communities, and Brighton and Hove Clinical Commissioning
Group.

Jointly funded by the NHS and the Council, the Prospectus provides an
alternative procurement approach that give equal weighting to elements of
quality, cost and social capital. A key aim is to encourage partnership
arrangements that use resources to best effect and provide local people with
more choice and control.

67



3.4 The commissioners used a range of processes to inform development of
outcomes in the following areas:

» Specialist advocacy services

» Activities for older people in localities across the city

» A city-wide co-ordination function to facilitate connections between
organisations working in the city

» Psychosocial support for the BME community. Funding for each outcome
area was agreed for 3 years to provide some security for the voluntary and
community sector organisations to develop their services and improve
their capacity to meet emerging need

68



3.50verview of outcomes and funding available

Commissioning Prospectus Outcome Areas
1.Specialist Advocacy
Outcome
1.1 Independent, free, local advocacy 190,000
services to support adults using, or (including 85,311
seeking to use, adult social care and ring-fenced for
health services people with
learning
disabilities)
1.2 Independent mental health advocacy £ 210,000
(IMHA) and community mental health
advocacy
2. Locality based activities for older people
Central and North area 142,566
East area 124,382
West area 145,566
Outcome
2.1 Supporting people to be as
independent as possible
2.2 Reducing social isolation
2.3 People remain healthy and well for as
long as possible
24 Providers compliment city-wide and
locality provision to maximise support
for older people’s activities
3.City -wide co-ordination 96,997
Outcome
3.1 Partnership working across and
between localities to support wider
outcomes
3.2 Mechanisms are in place to ensure
that users are involved at all stages of
activity
3.3 Organisations and activities flourish to
provide quality services
34 People remain healthy, well and
independent
3.5 Co-ordinating city-wide information
4 Psychosocial support in the Black, Minority and Ethnic 36,593
Community
Outcome
4 To improve the mental health
management and well- being of black
and ethnic minority communities who
live in Brighton and Hove, in particular
those who have limited knowledge of ,
or access to, community mental
healthcare services

3.6 These outcomes were developed in partnership with stakeholders to ensure that
the future shape of services focus on what matters most to residents. This
process involved use of existing information, evidence and research and the
knowledge and experience of local providers in the community and voluntary

sector to review and design the outcomes.

69



3.7

3.8
3.8.1

3.8.2

3.8.3

3.9
3.9.1

3.9.2

3.9.3

3.94

3.10

Governance arrangements

A steering group was set up in January 2013 to oversee the prospectus process.
Membership consisted of all the relevant commissioners with an interest in the
Prospectus together with officers from procurement, finance and contracts
departments. The group was chaired by the head of Commissioning and
Partnerships in Adult Social Care and the Community Voluntary Sector Forum
(CVSF) was also invited to sit on the steering group to represent the sector and
to act as a critical friend throughout the process.

Procurement process

Various consultation events took place during autumn 2012 and spring 2013 to
determine the final outcomes in each area. Invitees included both current and
potential new providers and were used to facilitate partnerships.

The prospectus was published on the South East Business Portal on May1st
2013.

Two training sessions were arranged through the CVSF to assist potential
bidders to understand the process, increase bid writing skills and to assist with
partnership bids for those providers who had not had this experience before. This
was widely advertised through the CVSF to reach as many potential bidders as
possible.

Bidder’s briefings were held for each outcome area of the prospectus during May
and all questions asked and answers given were published on the SE Business
Portal to ensure a fair and transparent process. Applications were received for
the first stage of the process by 28" June 2013.

Evaluation

Evaluation teams were formed consisting of the relevant commissioners,
procurement manager and a representative group of service users, known as
the “people’s panel.” The CVSF recruited these volunteers and they were
provided with evaluation training to ensure they understood their role and the
process.

The application form was split into sections on quality, social capital and cost.
The section on social capital included a question set by service users in East
Sussex and this incorporated a number of themes, this section of the application
was evaluated by the people’s panel.

The first stage of the evaluation process was completed by the end of July 2013.
Each bidder was then invited to a meeting to discuss their submission and they
were given feedback to indicate any areas for improvement. Following this
process they were invited to resubmit a revised bid by 20th September 2013

The evaluation teams then made adjustments to scores to reflect the content of
the revised bids.

Awards Process

To comply with governance requirements a report was taken to the Clinical
Commissioning Group (CCG) governing body on 26" November with a
recommendation to approve the award of contracts which had part of all CCG
funding. This was agreed.

70



3.11 The bidders were contacted on 27th November to inform them of the outcome of
their bid. The awards for each outcome area are detailed below:

Commissioning Prospectus Funding Awards

Outcome area Award
1.1 | Specialist Partnership bid:
Advocacy Mind-in Brighton and Hove — Lead Partner

Brighton and Hove Impetus - Interact
Brighton & Hove Speak Out

Brighton & Hove Age UK

The Fed Centre for Independent Living

1.2 | IMHA and MH Funding award not finalised — Procurement team are
community advising on next steps
advocacy

2. | Older people

activities
West Hangleton And Knoll
Impact Initiatives- St Johns
LGBT Switchboard
Trust For Developing Communities
East Somerset Day Centre
Impetus - Neighbourhood Care Scheme
Community Service Volunteers- Lifelines
North / Central Impact Initiatives- St Johns
LGBT Switchboard
Trust for Developing Communities
3. | City-wide co- The Fed Centre for Independent Living
ordination

4. | BME Psychosocial | Trust For Developing Communities
support

71



3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

Implementation

Following award, commissioners and the contract team will work with the
successful bidders to establish a clear set of performance indicators; to
finalise the specification and to confirm contractual arrangements; prior to the
new service starting at the beginning of April 2014.

Where bids from the incumbent provider were not successful the commissioner
and the contract team will support providers through the process of transferring
the service to the new provider.

Evaluation of the Prospectus process

This is the second commissioning prospectus produced by Adult Social Care and
partners. There was much learning following last year’s prospectus and this has
helped to improve the arrangements for this year. The CVSF have been very
helpful in providing feedback at the steering group throughout the process and
this will contribute to changes that should improve the experience for the next
prospectus.

Other departments within the Council are also using prospectus approach to
some commissioning activity and the intention going forward is to produce one
annual Prospectus containing various strands of commissioning activity rather
then having a number of different Prospectus documents. To achieve this
commissioning cycles will need to be aligned.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

A range of consultation was undertaken with a variety of stakeholders to identify
the desired outcomes for each area of the prospectus. This included use of
existing information and research, co-production with residents and community
and voluntary sector providers to develop the outcomes and inclusion of
representative service users through the evaluation process.

The CVSF have been actively involved throughout the process to represent the
sector and to advise and assist with engagement activity.

FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

Financial Implications:

‘The Commissioning Prospectus funding awards, totalling £0.736m, will be jointly
funded by the NHS and the Council within existing budget resources.’

Finance Officer Consulted:  Mike Bentley Date: 08.01.2014

Legal Implications:

There are no specific legal or Human Rights Act implications arising from this
Report which is for noting only.

Lawyer Consulted: Sandra O’Brien Date:08.01.2014

72



5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

6.1

Equalities Implications:

The Prospectus has a strong equalities statement that reflects the Council’s
intention to embed good practice across all services.

Some areas of prospectus activity had Equality Impact Assessments completed
prior to the start of the process. Others considered the impacts on groups with
protected characteristics as part of the process of developing the outcomes and
included specific objectives around vulnerable groups within the requirements of
the prospectus.

As part of the implementation process commissioners will work with the
successful bidders to ensure Equality Impact Assessments are completed,
monitored and reviewed.

Sustainability Implications:

Improving health and wellbeing, providing high quality advice and information
and tackling inequality are key outcomes identified within the Prospectus and all
support the Councils sustainable community strategy. Public Health funding has
been included within the outcome area for activities for older people to ensure
that specific outcomes relating to health and well-being and behaviour change
can be met through the prospectus.

Any Other Significant Implications

The outcomes identified within the Prospectus support the Council’s priorities
through:
» Tackling inequality
» Supporting vulnerable adults to live healthy independent lives;
* Reducing health inequalities;
* Increasing leisure opportunities for vulnerable older people;
* Providing accessible and responsive services to diverse communities;
* Improving community cohesion by promoting stronger partnerships
between community and voluntary sector organisations;
* Working collaboratively with CVS partners to ensure resilience within the
sector and to provide improved transparency and openness.
* Ensuring value for money and assessing social value.

EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S):
Following procurement advice and the success of the previous prospectus the

Prospectus approach was taken forward. This was rather than taking a
traditional tending approach.

73



SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:

None

Documents in Members’ Rooms
None

Background Documents

None

74



ADULT CARE & HEALTH Agenda Item 54

COMMITTEE
Brighton & Hove City Council

Subject: Adult Social Care Charging Policy

Date of Meeting: 20 January 2014

Report of: Executive Director Adult Services

Contact Officer: Name: Angie Emerson Tel: 29-5666
Email: Angie.emerson@brighton-hove.gcsx.gov.uk

Ward(s) affected: All

FOR GENERAL RELEASE

1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT:

1.1 Adult Social Care services are generally subject to service user charges. Most charges for
Non-Residential Care Services are subject to a financial assessment to ensure affordability
but the charging policy includes several fixed rate charges. The charging policy takes
account of current legislation, regulations and Government Guidance.

1.2  Maximum charge rates are usually reviewed in April of each year when state benefits
increase. However, this year the recommendation is to agree a three year plan for future
charges as listed in paragraph 2.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS:

2.1 That the following table of maximum charges are agreed with effect from 7™ April 2014.

2.2  Agree the proposed increases for April 2015 and April 2016

Maximum charges 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17
Means tested charges

In-house Home Care £20 per hour £20 per hour £20 per hour £20 per hour
Day Care £25 per day £30 per day £35 per day £40 per day
Max Weekly Charge £900 per week  £900 per week £900 per week no maximum
Fixed Rate Charges

Transport Charge £2.50 return £3.00 return £3.50 return £4.00 return
Meals at Day Centre £3.50 per meal  £3.90 per meal £4.30 per meal £4.70 per meal

Freeze CareLink charges for 2014/15 at: £14.50 p.month (2 key holders) £18.50 p.month (1 key) holder
£21.50 per month with no key holders, but with a key safe.

Continue to review these charges annually.

Additional charge for new ‘Mcare’ CareLink service — see para 3.15

Free for first month then £5 per month for current CareLink users and £12 for non CareLink
users.

2.3  Agree the Transport Policy (see attached document)

75



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY EVENTS:

Means tested charges for Adult Social Services are discretionary under Section 17 of
HASSASSA 1983 (Health and Social Services and Social Security Adjudication Act).
This policy is compliant with the requirements of that Act and the Department of
Health’s “Fairer Charging” Guidance. The Government intend to review the charging
regulations for care services in April 2016 under the Care and Support Bill which is
currently under consultation. This may affect future policy.

A package of non-residential care services can include home care, day care, community
support, telecare, adaptations and direct payments. Service users have one financial
assessment to determine the amount they can reasonably pay, and this covers all
services. The amount a person must pay will depend upon their income, savings and
expenditure, (except for the additional fixed charges for meals, transport and carelink).

Charges are also subject to an appeals procedure for exceptional circumstances.

There are just over 2000 service users with non-residential care services and this
includes older people, adults with physical disabilities, learning disabilities and mental
health difficulties. Around 42% of service users who have minimal savings and limited
income from state benefits are not required to make any contribution towards their care
services. The revised charging policy will not affect people in this group unless they
receive meals or transport with increased fixed rate charges.

Most people receive home care services from the independent sector where lower fee
rates are set and agreed by the council. The current rate for an hour of home care with
approved home care agencies is £14.80 but charges can vary with other agencies. These
rates are not being increased in 2014. People who have over £23,250 in savings will be
required to pay the full fees charged by private agencies.

Around 48% of service users are assessed to contribute from £3 to £80 per week, usually
based on their entitlement to extra disability benefits. Most of the people in this group will
not be affected by the proposed new maximum charges, other than any applicable fixed
rate charges

Only 3% of service users pay the maximum charge for in-house home care and day care
services. This affects

a) people with savings over the threshold (currently £23,250 or £45,500 for couples)

b) people who have a high income

c) people who have a very small care package eg.only one day care attendance per week.

The in-house home care service is under review to increase the provision of intermediate
care services and reablement services which must be free of charge for up to 6 weeks. If
the service continues beyond 6 weeks then the service user is means tested and may be
charged up to £20 per hour. There will continue to be a limited in-house general home
care service but as very few people will be affected it is recommended that the hourly
charge of £20 remains the same over next 3 years.

The survey of 9 councils below shows that there is a significant variation in home care
charges across the country ranging from £13 per hour in Leeds to £26.23 per hour in
Islington.

76



3.10

The survey also shows that almost all councils have a higher charge for Day Care
Services, although many have a matrix of charges depending upon assessed need
levels. The actual cost of providing day care in Brighton and Hove is much higher than
the maximum charging rate. Over a number of years, other local authorities have eroded
the subsidised cost of day care by increasing their day care charges to the true unit cost.

It is recommended that BHCC should erode the subsidy provided to those service users
who can afford to pay the true cost of providing day centres by increasing the current
maximum charge by £5 per day per annum for the next 3 years. The current charge of
£25 per day would increase to £30 per day in 2014, £35 per day in 2015 and £40 per day
in 2016.

Home Care Day Care - Per

LOCAL AUTHORITY  Per Hr Day

SHEFFIELD £23.52 £45.00 ALL

RICHMOND £12.50 £48.00 OLDER PEOPLE

LEEDS £13.00 £42.00 PD/LD

POOLE £13.34 £39.00

BOURNEMOUTH £13.95 £37.00 HIGH NEEDS

SOUTHEND £14.10 £20.50 ALL

HERTS CC £16.88 £39.34

NOTTS CC £17.85 £32.64 COMPLEX NEEDS

£20.00 -

BRIGHTON & HOVE  £14.80 £25.00 ALL

ISLINGTON £26.23 £40.00 OLDER PEOPLE
3.11  The current charging policy has a maximum weekly charge of £900. However, the

Department of Health is currently consulting nationally on the future funding of Adult
Social Care and will revise the charging legislation in April 2016. It is therefore
recommended that the maximum weekly charge should remain the same for now but
should be removed in April 2016 when implementing the revised national charging
regulations

FIXED RATE CHARGES (not means tested)

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

Flat rate charges for transport to day centres and other activities have fallen behind
inflationary increases in fuel costs and bus fares. It is, therefore, recommended that the
contribution for a return journey is increased from £2.50 to £3.00 in 2014 and by 50 pence
each April for the next 3 years. Transport is provided in line with the attached policy.

The committee has already approved an increase in charges for the community meals
service at £3.90 from April 2014.

It is recommended that the fixed charge for meals provided in the council’'s day centres
should remain in line with the approved charges for community meals and should therefore
be increased to £3.90 per meal in 2014 and by 40 pence each year for the next 3 years.

Whilst CareLink charges are low compared with some other authorities, service users
are significantly price sensitive. The last charging increase (2011/12) of £1 per month

led to 40 users withdrawing from the service. Charges have recently been deliberately
kept at a low value to increase the service user base. CarelLink and telecare services
are seen as preventative services and provide a vital communication link for many

77



4.1

4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2

5.3

vulnerable people in the city. A telecare project led by Adult Social Care has increased
the number of users and the number of telecare options available to support their
independence.

It is, therefore, recommended that the charge for 14/15 is frozen at current rates to
continue to facilitate more users to benefit from this preventative service. An additional
charge is recommended for a new ‘Mcare’ CareLink service which enables the user to
use mobile phone technology to summon help in emergencies. Aside from the
standard carelink charges, this service will be free for the first month, then £5 per
month for current CareLink users and £12 per month for non CareLink users.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

The Department of Health first issued the “Fairer Charging” Guidance in 2002, and, at
that time, the council carried out public consultation as required by the DH. Further
public consultation took place several years later relating specifically to charges for
Learning Disability services.

This report has been shared with the Older Peoples Council in December 2013.
Consultation with relevant officers and service managers has taken place.

FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

Financial Implications:

Charges for Adult Social Care non residential services are reviewed annually in
line with the Corporate Fees and Charges policy. The annual income from
charging for these in-house services is approximately £0.9 million, out of the
estimated total for non-residential services fees across Adult Social Care of £4.8
million. It is anticipated that the proposed charges will deliver the level of income
assumed in the 2014/15 budget proposals.

Finance Officer Consulted: Mike Bentley Date: 07/01/14

Legal Implications:

The legal basis for charging policy is specifically referred to in the body of this report.
Committee has responsibility under the terms of the Constitution for making decisions
regarding discretionary charging for services and when exercising this responsibility
must have regard to best value and implications for the public purse. There are no
specific Human Rights Act implications arising from this Report.

Lawyer Consulted: Sandra O’Brien Date:07/01/2014

Equalities Implications:

A separate Equalities Impact Assessment has been completed. All service users are
subject to the same means test and will only be affected by this revised policy if they
are able to pay.

78



54

Sustainability Implications:

There are no implications

5.5 Crime & Disorder Implications:

There are no specific crime and disorder implications set out in this report.

5.6 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:

No issues have been identified.
5.7 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:
No implications have been identified
5.8  Public Health Implications:
No issues have been identified
5.9 Corporate / Citywide Implications:
This policy will take effect across the city.

6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S):

6.1  The option of making no increases to care charges was considered but this would lead
to a loss of income which would effectively result in a reduced budget to spend on
social services.

6.2 The option of making higher increases was considered but were considered to be
difficult to justify with regard to the current level of inflation.

7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1 Charges for non-residential services are usually increased in April of each year in line
with the general increase in state benefits. It would be beneficial for future financial
budgeting to have a 3 year plan, indicating the general direction of charging rates.

7.2  People who are unable to pay the maximum charge rates are means tested and will
only be required to pay an amount relative to their personal financial circumstances.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices

ASC Transport Policy

Documents in Members’ Rooms

None

79



Background Documents

First Round Budget EIAs 2014-15 — summary of impacts and actions
Note: EIA 10 in this document

80



Brighton & Hove City Council

Eligibility Policy for Provision of Transport for
Adult Social Care service users

Contents

1. Policy Statement

2. Scope

3. Legal Framework

4. Strategic links to Local and National Priorities and plans

5. Principles

6. Eligibility and Practice Guidance in determining the need for transport
7. Implementation

8. Periods of Absence

9. Monitoring, Review and Reassessment

10. Complaints

81



1. Policy Statement

1.1 Adult Social Care provides transport through a variety of options to people with
learning disabilities, people with mental health problems, people with physical
disabilities and older persons across Brighton & Hove. This policy outlines how we
will move towards a consistent and equitable way of supporting older people, adults
with disabilities and/or mental ill health in provision of Council funded transport.

1.2 This policy is aimed at promoting the maximum possible independence for the
service user, and sets the criteria that will be used to assess whether the service
user’s transport needs can be met best through independent travel arrangements or
whether Council provided transport services are necessary.

1.3 This policy rests upon a general assumption and expectation that service users
will meet their own needs for transport to access and take advantage of existing
services or support.

1.4 Transport is not a service in its own right — it is a means of accessing services
or support. The overriding principle is that the decision to provide transport is based
on needs, risks and outcomes and on promoting independence.

1.5 Funded transport will only be provided if, in the opinion of the assessor, it is the
only reasonable means of ensuring that the service user can be safely transported to
an assessed and eligible service. Where there is appropriate transport available
(either personal or public transport), it will be assumed that the service user will use
this as a first option. Transport will only be provided if alternatives are unavailable or
inappropriate for some reason.

2. Scope

2.1 The assessment of need forms the basis on which Adult Social Care responds to
requests for assistance and is concerned with exploring a persons presenting needs
and determining their eligibility for services. The provision of transport will only be
considered in relation to meeting the needs of adults aged 18 years and over who
have been assessed as eligible for services and/or support from Adult Social Care.
As part of the Assessment and Care Planning process, the need to attend a
community service and/or to pursue other activities away from the service user’s
home may be identified.

The need for transport to any community service or activity service must be part of
the assessment of a persons needs and any subsequent review(s) and can only be
provided where the person is eligible for a service as set out in Brighton & Hove City
Council’s Fair Access to Care Services Policy Eligibility Framework and Guidance.

2.2 Where an individual requests a Direct Payment to meet their assessed needs for
care, the same principles will apply as to those people opting to receive support
directly from Adult Social Care. The cost of transport will only be included in the
Direct Payment where it is considered that the service user is eligible for this support.

2.3 The provision of transport is subject to a charge under the Council’s Fairer
Charging Policy. This policy may be reviewed from time to time, and changes may
affect the charge which will be made for the provision of transport. All changes will be
notified to all individuals who receive supported transport.

82



3. Legal Framework

3.1 Adult Social Care has a legal duty to provide transport to service users who are
eligible for social care support in certain circumstances. The following legislation sets
out that duty as follows:-

Section 47 (1) of the National Health Service and Community Care Act

1990 sets out the council’s duty to assess an individuals need for community

care services. It states that:

Where it appears to a local authority that any person for whom they may provide or
arrange for the provision of community care services may be in need of any such
service, the authority:

a) shall carry out an assessment of his needs for those services; and

b) having regard to the results of that assessment, shall then decide whether his
needs call for the provision.

Section 29 (1) of the National Assistance Act 1948 provides a power to local
authorities to make a variety of welfare arrangements for disabled people; the power
becomes a duty by virtue of directions given by the Secretary of State.

Section 2 (1) of the Chronically Sick and Disabled Person’s Act 1970
supplements and extends section 29(1) by placing a duty on local authorities to make
arrangements for a range of welfare services where satisfied that it is necessary to
do so to meet the needs of disabled persons to whom the section applies. Section
2(1) includes the provision of or assistance with, facilities for travel.

The Carers (Equal Opportunities) Act 2004, which commenced on 1 April

2005, promotes cooperation between authorities and requires councils to inform
carers of their right to an assessment which takes into account their outside interests
(work, study, leisure).

The arrangement for assessment and care management to meet the
requirements of the NHS and Community Care Act 1990 and the

Department of Health’s guidance on ‘Fair Access to Care Services’ is set out in
Brighton & Hove City Council’s Adult Social Care Fair Access to Care Services
Policy Eligibility Framework and Guidance.

4. Strategic links to Local and National Priorities and plans

4.1 The policy context is reflected by local and national priorities and plans which
are set out in a number of key documents:

“Our Health, Our Care, Our Say”(2006) which gives a framework for the Adult
Social Care to achieve a fresh approach in the delivery of all community based
services and outlines that services need to centre on the person, promote increased
choice and control, be flexible and responsive, promote a healthy lifestyle with an
emphasis on maintaining a person’s independence.
Putting People First, Transforming Social Care (2007) sets out the shared aims and
values which will guide the transformation of Adult Social Care, which consists of 4
themes:
» Facilitating access to Universal Services — ensuring support and services are
available to everyone locally including things like transport
» Building Social Capital — building a society where everyone has the
opportunity to be part of the community and experience the support that can
come from family and friends
* Prevention and Early Intervention — supporting people to stay independent for
longer
» Choice and Control — developing self directed support and ensuring that
services/support are able to meet people’s needs

83



Valuing People — A new strategy for Learning Disability sets out the
Governments commitment to improving peoples lives, based on rights, social
inclusion, choice and independence.

Valuing People Now (2009) sets out the priorities for Learning Disability Services.
The main priorities are personalisation, so that people have choice and control,
increased opportunities for day time and evening activities and inclusion in their
communities.

5. Principles

5.1 The overarching principle is that as part of the Council’s commitment to inclusion
and independence individuals who can travel to a community activity, either
independently or with assistance from family, friends or support providers will do so.
Staff from Adult Social Care will act as facilitators in indicating appropriate transport
options.

5.2 Following an assessment of need Brighton & Hove City Council funded transport
will only be provided to meet an eligible assessed need. The transport provided will
be appropriate for that need, will provide value for money and be cost effective.

5.3 People who qualify for concessionary travel i.e. bus passes, will be expected to
apply and use this as and when appropriate according to assessed needs.

5.4 A principle of reasonableness will be adopted i.e. an exploration will be
undertaken in any given situation as to whether it is reasonable to expect individuals
to make their own arrangements, all transport options have been examined and the
outcomes have been identified and evidenced.

5.5 This policy recognises that a reasonable charge will be applied for the provision
of Brighton & Hove City Council funded transport. This is a low, fixed rate, charge
which is not subject to a financial assessment but is compliant with the Council’s
Fairer Charging Policy.

6. Eligibility and Practice Guidance in determining the need for transport
6.1 The decision to provide assistance with transport must only follow a full
assessment of mobility needs and the risks associated as part of the support
planning process. The purpose of transport should be clearly stated on an
individual’s Support Plan.

6.2 In general, this Policy is based on the assumption that service users will travel
independently except where assessment shows that this is not possible. The test
used in the assessment should be ‘what will happen if the Adult Social Care does not
provide transport’ i.e. are there other ways in which the service user can reasonably
be expected to attend services and/or support making his/her own arrangements to
get there. The provision and/or funding for transport should only be considered if the
service user has needs categorised in accordance with the Council’s Fair Access to
Care Services Eligibility Framework and Guidance.

6.3 There are 4 stages in the process for assessment of eligibility for the provision of
assistance with transport and the identification of appropriate transport as follows:

* Access to existing transport

» Assessment of mobility
» Assessment of ability to travel independently

84



* Identification of appropriate transport provision for those eligible
6.3.1 Stage 1: Access to existing transport
Service users will not be eligible for transport if:

» They have a “Motability” vehicle which they drive themselves. In this instance there
will be consideration of whether it is reasonable to expect that the service user will
use that vehicle in order to travel to the location of the care service/activity.

» They have a mobility vehicle of which they are not normally the driver themselves.
Similarly, there will be consideration of whether it is reasonable to expect that the
service user will use that vehicle in order to travel to the location of the care
service/activity.

Service users with the following will only be eligible for transport if they are assessed
at Stage 3 as not capable of independent travel:

+ Mobility component of Disability Living Allowance

6.3.2 Stage 2: Assessment of mobility

An assessment will be made of the service user’s mobility. This will involve assessing
issues such as:

* Ability to walk outside

» Requirement for wheelchair/ other walking aid

+ Ability to get in and out of property

* Ability to get in and out of vehicle

* Risk of falling without support

* Ability to bear weight to transfer

* Whether mobile but at a risk when mobilizing due to uncontrollable movements

* Ability to use stairs, manage gradients, steepness of stairs in home, safety, energy
levels

Service users will be categorized for this purpose as follows:
* No mobility problems

* Limited mobility problems

 High/ complex mobility problems

6.3.3 Stage 3: Assessment of ability to travel independently

This assessment considers both physical and social reasons that enable or prevent

the service user from travelling independently. This will include:

* Extent of the mobility problems identified in Stage 2

+ Availability of family/carers

» Communication difficulties (for example ability to order taxi or use public transport)

* Psychological factors e.g. mental health, loss of confidence, agoraphobia, and lack
of insight into dangers associated with independent travel.

» Experience or risk of harassment

* Any other factors affecting personal safety

The assessor will determine whether the service user:

* Is capable of travelling independently

* Requires some training, support or assistance that will enable them to be capable
of travelling independently in the near future

* Not capable of travelling independently

85



Stages 1 to 3 will determine the eligibility of the service user for some form of
transport or transport assistance.

6.3.4 Stage 4: Identification of appropriate transport

Once eligibility has been assessed as above, it will be the duty of the Adult Social
Care to make appropriate arrangements for transport. Directly provided transport
services — whether internal or external — will be provided only once other alternatives
have been considered and ruled out, and not as a matter of course.

6.4 The range of transport service provision includes:

* Assistance with using public transport, e.g. travel buddies.

* Transport by parents/carers - supported by a direct payment to cover payment of
mileage allowance if appropriate

» community transport or a taxi service (council managed or via direct payment)

* Transport in Council vehicles, e.g. minibuses

6.5 Resources from Adult Social Care are unlikely to be allocated specifically to
meet transport related needs where an individual

» s in receipt of the higher rate mobility component of the Disability Living
Allowance, the purpose of which is to assist those who have mobility
problems, with severe difficulty walking or who need help getting around out
of doors. Under normal circumstances no-one in receipt of the higher rate
mobility allowance would receive funded transport, unless there are factors
limiting their ability to fully utilise the benefits of the allowance e.g.
geographical location, the nature of the disability, wheelchair type or carer
support requirements. The support plan will determine the level of support
offered in these circumstances as part of the assessment process.

NB. The Social Security Contributions and Benefits Act 1992 section 73(14) states
that while social services authorities are empowered but not obliged to charge for
such transport services, in assessing a persons ability to pay, his/her mobility
component of DLA if received must be ignored.

» Lives in a registered residential care home and the individual is assessed as
having the ability to travel independently, or with minimal intervention, then
the care home will make provision to support independent travel if they are
responsible for transport arrangements. If the individual is a tenant in
supported accommodation or adult placement scheme, they will be subject to
the same assessment and care planning arrangements as people living in
their own homes or with relatives. In some circumstances the cost of the
placement covers the full range of support needs, including transport, to
attend community activities including college.

* Where transport costs are included in residential care fees, the person should
be charged the fixed rate contribution in the same way as all others are
charged for funded transport.

6.6 There is no single definition of what is reasonable distance/time to access
services or activities that meet social care needs. An assessor should be able,
having information about an individual’s abilities and the transport options available,
to define “reasonable” for that individual. It will be for each person to decide how far
they are willing to travel in order to extend their choice and this will need to be
balanced between distance, value for money and choice. In addition, the time taken
to travel to the service destination or the cost of alternative means of transport should

86



also be taken into account by the assessing officer as these may be prohibitive for
the individual.

6.7 Where people incur extra expense for transport, in addition to normal daily living
costs, related to their impairment (Disability Related Expenditure - DRE) this will be
assessed and agreed as part of the financial assessment process and allowances
made in accordance with the Council’s Fairer Charging Policy. This may reduce the
amount the person would otherwise have to pay for means tested charges e.g. for
Day Care services.

6.8 Part of the individuals’ assessment or review will identify their potential to learn
road safety and orientation skills so that they can travel independently, thus
maximising their skills and autonomy. This may require a planned programme of
transport training by a support worker, or a system of pairing people up or forming
small groups, so that people can travel together and support each other.
Programmes of support must be identified in Support Plans and be subject to regular
review to monitor progress.

6.9 The Council’s policy on Sustainability highlights the promotion of walking, cycling
and public transport. The focus should be that where practicable activities should be
sought within the local community and closer to people’s homes e.g. using “It's Local
Actually”. The services of Shopmobility and mobility scooters also should be
promoted.

6.10 Where a person cannot attend their nearest community activity including college
or a day opportunity because there is no placement available the assessor may
make a case requesting additional resources to be allocated.

However, where a person chooses to attend community activities, college or a day
centre that is not the nearest and the nearest service is available to meet their
assessed need, any additional cost of any transport considered necessary will be
met by the person.

6.11 Geographical isolation may be a factor in an individual’s ability to access
services outside the home. People living in outlying areas of the City may experience
additional barriers in terms of the frequency and number of buses they are required
to use, or the prohibitive cost of taxi fares.

The availability of alternative accessible and affordable means of transport must be
considered when assessing an individual’s ability to travel independently.

6.12 Where a person, who has previously been using Special Education Needs
transport (SEN), is assessed as needing continued transport after the age of 19,
Adult Social Care may consider allocating resources that will not be adequate for
individualised transport options (i.e. not arranged to meet individual convenience).
This may mean the provision of any of the following but not exclusively: shared
transport or transport arranged at set times for college days.

6.13 Where a person contributes towards the provision of a shared community
vehicle, there is an expectation that this would be used to transport them to
community activities including college, assuming it is available to do so.

6.14 Where the individual is reliant on a relative or other carer to drive a mobility car,
consideration must be given to supporting carers respite needs, including enabling
them to work. None the less, if an individual or carer makes the decision that the car
will not be used for the intended purpose the onus must be on the individual and/or

87



carer to make alternative appropriate arrangements. Assessing officers must also
ensure that a carer’s reluctance or inability to assist with transport does not prevent
an individual from accessing a service that meets their assessed needs and the
individual/carer will need to make alternative arrangements.

6.15 Where there is conflict between the individual and carer, regarding “Motability”
cars, officers may need to consider the possibility of reverting back to a monetary
allowance with the Department for Work and Pensions, if the individual so wishes.
This would promote independence and allow the individual to take control of their
own transport requirements. Consideration will be given to the impact of this option
on service user/carer relationships and the need to avoid creating unnecessary
conflict. In some circumstances support from an independent advocacy service
should be sought for the individual and, if necessary, the carer.

6.16 Where it is identified that a carer will provide transport it is important that the
assessor is able to demonstrate that the impact of this has been appropriately
considered in an assessment of the carer‘s needs. Where it is concluded that the
carer cannot provide transport because it would place an unreasonable demand on
them, then the assessment should lead to an allocation of resources to meet the
critical and substantial needs that can be met by enabling access to transport. Where
carers or friends have been identified as being able to provide transport, alternative
arrangements should be detailed in the contingency plan to cover periods where they
are unable to do so.

6.17 In all other circumstances where a person has no access to their own transport
and cannot walk, use assisted mobility (wheelchair/aids) or use public transport,
either independently or with support, then the assessment should lead to an
allocation of resources to meet critical and substantial needs that are adequate to
access funded transport to and from services or activities.

6.18 There may be a need for periodic transport support for individuals in times of
illness of themselves or their carer, or in relation to family circumstances, and a
flexible approach will be taken in these situations. A review of the Care/Support Plan
is appropriate in these cases.

6.19 Once it has been agreed that the individual will be provided with funded
transport, a referral must be made to the Transport Section who will undertake an
evaluation to procure suitable transport provision, taking into account the needs and
wishes of the individual, the views of any carer or representative/advocate, health
and safety risk assessment factors and value for money.

7. Implementation

7.1 This policy will be applied from 1st April 2014 to any new adult social care service
users and also to existing service users. For existing service users this Policy will be
implemented at the time of their annual review.

7.2 For those existing service users who will lose their eligibility for transport under
this Policy, their circumstances will be considered sympathetically and it is envisaged
that there will be a transitional period of up to 3 months to support them to travel
independently or to make use of alternative arrangements following their re-
assessment/annual review.

8. Periods of Absence

88



8.1 Where an individual does not require their transport, then providing they give 48
hours notice, to the Access Point (Adult Social Care) they will not be charged for the
transport but will still be required to contribute to the cost of any other support they
continue to receive. Where notice has not been given, charges may only be waived
at the discretion of the appropriate Service Manager, e.g. emergency admission to
hospital. (This is in accordance with the Fairer Charging Policy).

8.2 If an individual is allocated a place on supported transport, it is essential that the
place is fully utilised. Therefore, if the individual is absent for more than a month,
either through illness or on a planned basis, they will be subject to a review to ensure
that continuation of the previous service will be appropriate to meet their needs. Their
place may be re-allocated during this time if the need arises. In some cases it may be
appropriate to keep the place open, but this must be by agreement with the care
manager, day service provider, transport provider and the individual.

9. Monitoring, Review and Reassessment

9.1 Travel arrangements and any impacts this policy has had on the ability of
vulnerable people to access appropriate services to meet their eligible social care
needs, will be considered by assessing officers at a review or reassessment of the
individual’s needs.

9.2 An individual or their authorised representative can request a review of their
social care assessment at any time.

9.3 If the individual disagrees with the assessment and wishes this to be
reconsidered then they should contact the Team Manager within 10 days of receipt of
the assessment outcome. Following such a notification from the service user the
Operations Manager will review the assessment carried out by the assessing officer.
This will normally be completed within 10 working days and a written reply provided
detailing and setting out the reasons for maintaining or revising the assessment. The
Operations Manager will acknowledge receipt of the service users request and notify
them of the timescales involved and when they will be receiving a response.

9.4 At any time in this process the individual or their representative can make a
complaint under the Council’s Corporate Complaints Procedure.

10. Complaints

10.1 Brighton & Hove Adult Social Care’s Complaints Policy welcomes and responds
positively to all comments, compliments and complaints as a means of demonstrating
it's commitment to working in partnership with individuals and carers.

10.2 The Adult Social Care Complaints System comprises of one stage after which
the complainant should be advised to refer the matter to the Local Government
Ombudsman. A copy of the Complaints Procedure is available on request.

10.3 Although complainants can refer their complaints from the outset, or at any
stage, to the Local Government Ombudsman, they will not normally be
investigated until the Council has conducted its own investigation and made a
response.

More information is available from:

complaints@brighton-hove.gov.uk

89



01273 291229

Standards and Complaints
146 Kings House

Hove

BN3 2SL

90



ADULT CARE & HEALTH Agenda Item 55

COMMITTEE
Brighton & Hove City Council

Subject: Fee Level for Adult Social Care Services 2014-15
Date of Meeting: 20 January 2014

Report of: Executive Director Adult Services

Contact Officer: Name: Jane MacDonald Tel: 29-5038

Mark Hendriks

jane.macdonald@brighton-hove.qgov.uk
Email: mark.hendriks@brighton-hove.qgov.uk

Ward(s) affected: All

FOR GENERAL RELEASE

1.

1.1

1.2

2.1

SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT:

This report concerns fees paid to independent and voluntary sector providers that
supply care services on behalf of Brighton and Hove City Council Adult Social Care
and Brighton and Hove Clinical Commissioning Group.

It includes fees paid to providers of services for older people, people with physical
disabilities, adults with mental health needs and adults with a learning disability.
Service providers include registered care homes, supported accommodation, home
care and community support, community service and direct payments.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That Adult Care and Health Committee agree the proposed fee increases as set out in the
table below.

Description of service Recommended fee increase
In city care homes 1% increase

set rate where older people set rates apply

In city care homes 2% increase

set rate where older people mental health
set rates apply

In city care homes/ 0% change
Supported Living
Non set rate

Out of city care homes/ 0% change
Supported living

set rate

Shared lives carers 1% increase
Out of city care homes 0% change
Non set rate

Home care 0% change
Direct payments 0% change
Service contracts 0% change

91



3.

3.1

3.2

3.2.1

3.2.2

3.2.3

3.3

3.3.1

RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY EVENTS:

Terminology

» This report refers to care homes and care homes with nursing; care homes are also
known as rest or residential homes and care homes with nursing are known as
nursing homes. In this report the term registered care home is a term used to mean
both care homes and care homes with nursing, all of which are registered with the
Care Quality Commission.

» Set rates are usually used for placements in homes for older people and older people
with mental health needs. Fees for adults aged 18 - 65 generally are individually
negotiated ie ‘non set rates’.

» Supported living and supported accommodation refer to services where a person
has a tenancy or licence agreement for their accommodation, with separate
agreements for care and support.

* Third party payments are ‘top ups’ paid by a third party, usually a family to secure a
placement at a price that is greater than the council would fund.

» Service contracts are funding arrangements for services, such as advocacy and day
services that are provided in the community generally by voluntary and community
groups.

Project work

For a number of years there has been an issue about the costs of delivering decent
quality care versus the prices which such care attracts; this is particularly true of care
delivered in registered care homes. The debate has tended be different in older
people’s care in relation to care provided for younger people with disabilities,
particularly learning disabilities.

It has largely been providers of registered care homes for older people and older
people with mental health needs, who have expressed concern that prices paid by
councils do not reflect the cost of care.

In April 2012, Brighton and Hove Council commissioned Information and Efficiency
South East to review the way fees are agreed across all care sectors and develop a
clear rationale for allocation of resources that take account of the cost of care. The
project is now in its latter stages which includes on going work with providers to gather
information about how their finances are constructed. This is with a view of making an
offer that is easier to understand. Work on this is more complex than originally
envisaged and is likely to be nearing completion in spring 2014. It will need to take into
account the Care bill 2014. The work will help inform fee setting for 2015/16.

Care homes and supported living out of city

It is recommended that Brighton and Hove match the applicable host authority set rates for
new and existing registered care home placements out of the city where these rates apply;
and that any adjustments to these rates is reflected in any third party payments which apply.
This is recommended as each local area is best placed to arrange local fee settlements.

92



3.3.2

3.3.3

3.4

3.4.1

3.4.2

3.4.3

3.4.4

For those registered care home places that are not covered by set rate arrangements, the
owners will be advised to contact the council to discuss future fees if this is necessary eg if a
resident’s needs have changed and a reassessment is needed or if the provider is in
financial difficulty.

For supported living out of the city; if appropriate, owners will be requested to contact the
council to discuss future rates. This includes supported living and community support for
people with learning disabilities and accommodation services for people with mental health
needs.

Registered care homes rates in the city

An overview of current weekly fees paid to providers of care homes are set out below

Type of care Service Cost of single
home users room
Nursing home Older People £572
Nursing home Older People with £618

Mental Health

Needs
Residential home Older People (high need) £465
Residential home Older People with £509

Mental Health

Needs

It is recommended that there is an uplift of 1.0 % for registered care homes where the
older people set rates apply. Previous Committee agreements relating to fees are in
Appendix one. A full breakdown of current fee rates is included as Appendix two.

Changes to Care Quality Commission registration have had an impact on how care for
older people is provided. A few years ago before the relaxation of registration, once a
person had a diagnosis of dementia they could no longer stay in a mainstream care
home, but would have to move to a care home registered for dementia. Following the
registration change many people with dementia stay in mainstream care homes, which
on the whole is a positive outcome. A consequence though, is that those people who
do go to care homes registered for dementia can be those with the most complex (and
costly) needs. This is likely to have contributed to some undersupply across the South
East region.

Supply in Brighton and Hove is complex, with some new providers targeting self
funders entering the city and others choosing to leave the market. The city has a
historic undersupply of homes for people with dementia needs. This shortage impacts
on delayed transfers of care, further undersupply will exacerbate this and cause
problems in the wider health economy. In West Sussex 2013-14 rates for registered
care homes providing dementia care were increased by 8.4%. Although West Sussex
still pays less than Brighton and Hove the magnitude of increase for registered care
homes supporting people with dementia is not unusual. It is recommended that there
is an uplift of 2.0 % to care homes and care home with nursing where the older people
mental heath rates apply.

The fees for mental health placements for people aged 18 - 65 vary significantly

according to provider and generally the fees are significantly higher than placements
for older people and older people with mental health needs although many of the ‘hotel’

93



costs are similar. It is recommended that there is no uplift to providers of adult
placements. This includes providers of registered care homes, supported living and
supported accommodation. Any provider experiencing financial difficulty is urged to
contact the council. If the council cannot assist directly, business support partners
might be able to help www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/index.cfm?request=b1000040

3.4.5 Fees for providers where the primary need is learning disability and physical placements,
vary considerably, and will be reviewed through the Care Home Fees Project. Each
placement tends to be negotiated on an individual basis. This includes providers of
registered care homes, supported living and supported accommodation. Although these
services have not received any uplift to fees for several consecutive years, the sector
broadly understands and accepts the need for continued efficiency. As above any provider
experiencing financial difficulty is urged to contact the council. There is also a
recommendation for any resident who is on rates lower than set rates to be uplifted to the
set rate.

3.5 Shared Lives: All Client Groups

There is a review of fee structures which links to the care home fees project. There
has been no uplift in council supported Shared Lives since 2009 and feedback
indicates significant financial pressure on carers and service providers. The proposed
expansion of Shared Lives may be jeopardised with no uplift. It is recommended that
there is 1% uplift in fees paid to Shared Lives carers

3.6 Home care

An uplift to fees was paid to home care providers last year. This was to support those
who were experiencing difficulties in recruitment, particularly for people to work in the
evening beyond 8pm and also in recognition of the high cost of petrol for home care
workers. The home care market continues to have recruitment difficulties locally and
nationally, but it is likely that there is range of contributing factors aside from fees.
Increased monitoring is required to ensure providers use funds to achieve the desired
outcomes. It is recommended that there is no uplift in fees 2014-15.

3.7 Direct payments

Similar issues that affect home care costs apply to direct payments as these are used
in the main to purchase hours of personal assistant time and an uplift was paid to
providers last year. In line with recommendations made regarding home care fees it is
recommended that there is no uplift in fees 2014-15.

3.8 Service Contracts

3.8.1 Service contracts are funding arrangements for services, provided in the community
generally by voluntary and community groups. This category includes day activities
and community meals. The Prospectus approach to commissioning is used for funding
arrangements. This includes the facility for a bidder to set their price for overall delivery
of service, including management and operations costs. Thus any relevant cost of
living or uplift within the scope of the available funding would be built into the bid and
this would be agreed for the length of the funding agreement.

3.8.2 Both council and NHS commissioners are working with providers on an individual
basis. The overarching recommendation for all providers not in the Prospectus is for

94



4.1

4.2

5.1

no change to fees for the 2014/15 financial year. Any provider that experiences
financial difficulty is encouraged to make the council aware and they will be offered
advice and support.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION
This report has been shared with:

4.1.1 The Brighton and Hove Clinical Commissioning Group. The Manager and
Clinical Lead for NHS Continuing Healthcare and Head of Commissioning
Mental Health and Community Services both supported the recommendations in
the report.

4.1.2 Public Health. The Business Manager confirmed that Public Health will not be
giving a financial uplift to any of their contracts in 2014.

4.1.3 Corporate Policy, Performance and Communities have given comment on the
report. In line with the Communities & Third Sector Policy they are committed to
the prospectus approach and this is in line with paragraph 3.8.1

4.1.4 Healthwatch Brighton and Hove. This report has been shared with Healthwatch
Brighton and Hove. They have no concerns, providing the quality of the service
is not affected by the recommendations and the proposal would not affect the
contribution people have to make towards the cost of their care

4.1.5 Older Peoples Council. This report was discussed at Older Peoples Council in
December 2013.

4.1.6 Brighton and Hove Registered Care Homes Association (RCHA). The RCHA is
part of the care home fee project group and in regular dialogue with the Council
regarding fees paid to care homes.

The recommendations within this report are broadly in line with the early indications
from other Local Authorities in the South East.

FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

Financial Implications:

The current annual gross budget on care services is £71.5 million and the inflation
allowance for fees included in the budget model for 2014/15 is 2% as per the report to
Policy & Resources Committee on 111 July 2013. The proposed fee uplifts set out in
section 2.1 will help deliver the £1 million savings within the Adult Social Care budget
strategy for 2014/15 included elsewhere on this agenda, by limiting inflation increases
on fees in view of the levels of increase in the last two years and ensure comparability
with other local authorities.

Finance Officer Consulted: Anne Silley Date: 08/01/2014

95



5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

6.1

7.1

Legal Implications:

Alteration of rates for care requires approval of this Committee. This report describes
the analysis applied to rate setting in the context of comparison with other authorities,
previous increases, local provision data, the ongoing review of fees and matching care
needs and consultation. In addition to consideration of these variables the Council
must have regard to the public purse. As described in the body of this Report provision
is made for any individual care provider to receive support and assistance if financial
difficulties arise.

Lawyer Consulted: Sandra O’Brien Date: 08/01/2014

Equalities Implications:

A separate Equalities Impact Assessment has been completed.

Sustainability Implications:

Fee rates awarded are intended to meet Council budget pressures and keep businesses
sustainable.

Any Other Significant Implications

Significant implications are included in the body of the report.

EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S):

Various options and permutations were considered. The recommendations in the
report balance the council’s financial position with provider need. Any provider
experiencing financial difficulty is urged to contact the council.

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

See above.

96



Appendix one

Table showing changes to Fees paid 2011 to present

2011-2 2012-3 2013-4
In city care homes 0% change Older People, Mental health, 1% increase
set rate Physical Disability - 5% increase
In city care homes/ Learning Disability - individually 0% change
Supported Living negotiated
Non set rate
Out of city care homes/ Match Match Match
supported living Applicable Applicable Applicable
set rate host area host area host area
Out of city care homes 0% change 0% change
Non set rate
Home care 0% change 0% change 2% increase
Direct payments 2% increase 2% increase
Service Contracts 2% increase/ individually negotiated| 0% change

Appendix two

Weekly fee rates for 2013/14 for in City Nursing Homes for Older People and Older People Mental
Health (OPMH) applicable from 8" April 2013

Care Homes with Nursing for Older People Weekly Rate including Social Care Rate and RNCC
Shared Room £534.79
Single Room £571.79

Care Homes with Nursing for Older People with

Mental Health needs Weekly Rate including Social Care Rate and RNCC

Shared Room £580.79

Single Room £617.79
RNCC

Single Nursing Band £109.79

Continence Payment £6.90

Weekly fee rates for 2013/14 for in City Residential Care Homes for Older People and Older People Mental
Health (OPMH) applicable from 8" April 2013

Residential Cares Homes for Older People Weekly Rate
Low Need - single room £344
Low Need — shared room £309
Medium Need - single room £418
Medium Need — shared room £380
High Need - single room £465
High Need — shared room £427

97




Residential Cares Homes for Older People with

Mental Health Needs Weekly Rate
OPMH - single room £500
OPMH - shared room £472

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Documents in Members’ Rooms
None
Background Documents

None

98




ADULT CARE & HEALTH Agenda Item 56

COMMITTEE Brighton & Hove City Council
Subject: Day Activity Review Update

Date of Meeting: 20™ January 2014

Report of: Executive Director of Adult Services

Contact Officer: Name: Anne Richardson-Locke Tel: 29-0379

Email: anne.richardson-locke@brighton-hove.gcsx.gov.uk
Contact Officer: Name: Naomi Cox Tel: 29-5550

Email: naomi.cox@brighton-hove.gcsx.gov.uk
Ward(s) affected: All

FOR GENERAL RELEASE

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT

This report provides an update on the progress of the Day Activities Review.
Previous reports to committee have noted:
* The increase in demand for different community based day opportunities.
 More flexibility in existing day services is required to promote
independence for individuals, and to support carers.
» The need for individuals to have a personalised day service.

As a result of the review consideration has been given to how people can be
offered a wider choice of day activities. This has resulted in some individuals
receiving innovative personalised services.

Information is provided in this report on the ongoing savings that need to be
realised within day services, taking in to account that the Council will receive
considerably less money from central government. It provides an update on the
in-house learning disability Day Options service and its building bases.

There is a savings target against the in-house learning disability Day Options
service and a corporate drive to review the use of buildings. This has led to a
change in the way that two Council run learning disability Day Options buildings
bases are used.

There are local and national developments that are having a significant impact on
social care and these include demographic changes that predict increases in
complex needs, legislative changes such as the Care Bill and unprecedented
financial challenges.

All Adult Social Care directly-provided services are considering how best to meet
statutory needs; provide crisis response services, support those people with the
greatest needs and look to deliver short-term services that maximise
independence. Brighton & Hove has a thriving independent and voluntary sector
and 90% of all Adult Social Care services are already delivered at lower cost

99



1.7

1.8

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

through the Council purchasing these services rather than directly providing
them.

The Council has a discretionary power to provide a day service when it is
required to meet an eligible need and this may be within a building or within the
community.

Committee is asked to agree to a consultation process on a proposal for the
future of the service.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
That Committee note the contents of the report.

That Committee agree to a formal 12 week consultation with users of the
Council’s learning disability Day Options service, their family carers and key
stakeholders regarding the future service as set out in the proposal in section 4
of the report.

That a report returns to Committee in June 2014 with the outcome of the
consultation to enable Committee to make a decision regarding the future of the
learning disability Day Options service.

CONTEXT/ BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Day activities were first discussed at Adult Care & Health Committee in June
2012. It was acknowledged that the traditional model of building-based provision
segregated by client group and age, coupled with a projected increase in
demand, needed reviewing and modernising. This was particularly important in
light of the personalisation agenda and service users being supported to exercise
choice and control of the service they receive. Members agreed for Adult Social
Care to commence consultation on the development of a commissioning plan for
day activities that would include all client groups.

A full needs assessment was carried out in 2012 and this was reported to
Committee in November 2012 and this highlighted that:

» Day services are highly valued by service users and carers

* Potential future users of adult social care services are reluctant to use the
traditional day centre model

* There are a range of costs, purchasing and contractual arrangements across
the sector

» There is a lack of awareness of what activities and/or alternative services
are available in the city and how to access them

» There is very little knowledge of personal budgets and direct payments

» There is greater need for services for people with more complex needs

* It is important that friendship and social groups are sustained as to some
people these are more important than the activities that they engage in.

100



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

The Vision for Day Activities:

The new Vision for Day Activities, that was co-produced with providers and
service users, was agreed by Members in November 2012 and is a vision where:

 Day activities provide flexible, personalised care and support for service
users and their carers.

* Information is widely available about what activities and/or alternative
services are on offer in the city, how to access them and what they cost for
those who use personal budgets.

*  Council-provided services specialise in supporting people with the most
complex needs

As part of the Day Activity Review, commissioners have worked closely with the
Council’s directly-provided day services for all client groups to ensure that any
remodelling is in line with the agreed vision. Work is ongoing at Tower House to
support older people and people with physical disabilities and to signpost them to
activities in the community. The two day centres for older people with mental
health needs (Ireland Lodge and Wayfield Avenue) are working closely with the
third sector to ensure that buildings are used effectively, are open to the
community more and make the best use of volunteers.

Providers of independent day activities have also been involved by ensuring that
their services meet the aims of the vision. The Commissioning Prospectus has
been used to commission older people services and from April 2014, day
activities will be provided in three different locality areas across the city with the
aim of supporting older people to be as independent as possible, reducing social
isolation and supporting people to remain healthy and well for as long as
possible. There will also be a city wide co-ordination service which will work in
partnership across the sector and across client groups to support and facilitate a
more joined-up approach.

Where necessary, independent sector providers of learning disability services are
modernising to meet the aims of the vision by making the best use of community
resources, providing more flexibility around opening times, such as at evenings
and weekends, and ensuring that they are accessible for people with personal
budgets. These providers are also subject to scrutiny with regard to their unit
costs and value for money and the Budget Strategy highlights the need for a 10%
reduction of the budget for commissioned services by ensuring only assessed
needs are met. @ Commissioners are also exploring the best way of
commissioning day activities in the future with colleagues in Assessment,
Procurement and Finance.

Review of Council buildings:

Independent of the Day Activity Review, the Council has been evaluating the use
of its owned buildings in order to make the best use of its resources and three
day services have been affected by the outcome:

101



3.8

3.9

3.10

3.7.1 Craven Vale no longer provides day services to older people from its
resource centre and service users have since transferred to Tower House day
centre along with service users with physical disabilities who transferred from
Montague House day service.

3.7.2 Connaught Day Service. The learning disability Day Options service at
Connaught Day Centre is required to move as the building is needed by
Education for additional school places. As reported to Committee in November
2013, service users will be relocating to the Belgrave building once building
works are completed in March 2014.

3.7.3 Buckingham Road Day Service. In September 2013, Policy &
Resources Committee agreed to grant a long lease at Buckingham Road and it is
anticipated that Property & Design will start marketing this property in the spring
of 2014 with the view to completing a sale in 2015. Members were informed at
the September and November Committee meetings that Montague Place had
been suggested as an alternative location for the Our Art project but the building
would have needed additional capital funding of £156k to make it accessible.

Assessments of need:

To ensure that people with learning disabilities using day services are receiving
services that accurately reflect their needs and aspirations, and to enable
effective planning, thorough assessments of individual service user needs are
being carried out by a dedicated team of care managers. A detailed report was
submitted to the November 2013 Adult Care & Health Committee with the
numbers and outcomes of assessments. To date, approximately 50 assessments
have been completed resulting in some really positive changes to services and
consequently, some new and creative person-centred care packages, as
highlighted in the case studies presented to the November 2013 Committee.

Priority for assessments have been given to people affected by the changes to
the learning disability Day Options service and to people who have been
identified as not having their current needs met. All learning disability Day
Options service users will receive an assessment as well as some service users
who are receiving a service from the independent sector. These assessments
are holistic and will take account of all aspects of their day to day living including
their accommodation circumstances and their carers’ needs.

People who live in residential care and supported living who attend day services
will be assessed to ensure that the current arrangements meet their needs. The
needs assessment identified that some of the people who live in 24hr
accommodation, both Council-provided and independent sector services, would
sometimes prefer to stay at home but that they were unable to due to levels of
staffing in their home and thus, limited activities were available for them. There
are however some good examples of residential care providers facilitating
person-centred activities for people during the day and this needs to be explored
further.

102



3.1

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

The assessment process will offer service users and their carers the opportunity
to reflect upon where they need support and encourage choice about how such
needs can be met now and in the future. This will also provide an opportunity to
consider what is important to and for the person and their carers and what
alternative person-centred opportunities may exist to meet assessed need.
These assessments will be undertaken in the context of budget savings but
eligible needs will continue to be met. The outcomes of these assessments will
contribute to, but not take the place of, any future consultation with service users
and their family carers.

The outcomes of these assessments will also be used to improve choice and
control for individuals and greater value for money by contributing to
commissioning plans. The combined data from assessments will enable
commissioners to plan services, meet individual needs and also make collective
provision where appropriate.

Budget and Learning Disability Day Options Day Service:

The 2013/14 direct expenditure budget for Learning Disabilities services is
£32.9million of which Day Services is £3.4million, excluding the savings target of
£0.4million, and represents 10.3% of the total budget.

The unit costs for in-house is £301 per client per week and £239 per client per
week for the independent sector. These unit costs are taken from the 2012/13
Personal Social Services Expenditure & Units (PSSEX1) return after deducing
Support Services, Capital Costs and Supported Employment.

There is however, a significant budget pressure on this service. There is a
savings target of £400k as yet unachieved from 2012/13 and 13/14. Subject to
council approval in February 2014, additional savings of £300k are required of it
in 2014/15. To work towards achieving these savings within the 2014/15 year it
is essential that formal consultations on proposed changes should commence in
January 2014, as this would enable an informed decision to be made by Adult
Care & Health Committee in June 2014.

Against this background, commissioners have been working closely with the
Learning Disability Day Options Day Service and have jointly identified priorities
for the service. The priorities are:

People with additional needs: specifically those with profound and multiple needs
who require access to a centre-based service as well as support to access the
local community.

People with complex needs, specifically those whose behaviours may be
challenging and who require a centre-based environment as well as support to
access the local community.

A Day Options Matching Service for all client groups to support groups of people
to meet up with friends and access community groups and facilities e.g. sport,
leisure, volunteering.

That the Day Options Service will be able to respond to last minute emergency
and crisis requests from the assessment team.

103



41

4.2

4.3

4.4

ANALYSIS & CONSIDERATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

Careful consideration has been given to what the Council can offer in terms of
providing more flexible personalised services, and what it can continue to provide
within the given budget and the requirement to make savings. Work has been
ongoing for the past year to find alternative sites for the activities at Buckingham
Road, as reported to Committee but an alternative venue in-house is not
financially viable. Montague Place was considered for Our Art and Wellington
House for Feast but capital funding would be required in order to relocate the
projects: Feast would need £52k to create a suitable kitchen in Wellington House
and Montague Place requires £156k to make it accessible. As well as additional
capital funding continuing these activities would result in no savings being
achieved. In addition there are good quality art and catering activities provided
within the community and voluntary sector.

Proposal - Provide a reduced In-house learning disability Day Options
service

The proposal is to reduce the learning disability Day Options service to support
people with learning disabilities and the most complex needs including additional
physical health needs and/or challenging needs. To meet the savings target it is
estimated that the service could support 20-30 people and the remaining service
users (currently approximately 100 people) would receive assessments and be
supported by the independent sector or within their community or residential care
home.

This proposal would result in the following implications:

4.3.1 Adults Provider In-House Day Services would need to achieve savings in
excess of the combined savings target of £0.7million, subject to Council
approval in February 2014, in order to accommodate the re-provision
costs of approximately 100 clients.

4.3.2 If Committee were to implement the proposal and reduce in-house
provision there would be an impact on staffing numbers. Formal staff
consultation on these implications and how they would be managed would
commence once decisions about the future of the service have been
made.

4.3.3 There would be a need to work closely with other day service providers in
the city to enable them to increase their capacity. The outcome of social
care assessments may mean that some providers of 24 hour
accommodation services will provide the day activity element of support to
their residents, subject to capacity.

4.3.4 If approved full implementation of these changes would need to be timed
to coincide with the re-provision of day support to service users whose
needs would be met in the independent and voluntary sector.

The timescales for the proposals are as follows:
441 The timescales for completion relate to the outcomes of the remaining
social care assessments which will take place during the consultation

period and the provision of alternative day activities for approximately 100
learning disability Day Options service users.

104



4.5

4.6

5.1

5.2

5.3

4.4.2 Once the consultation with service users and families has been completed
and a decision has been made formal consultation with affected staff if
appropriate and necessary would then take place.

4.4.3 Service users would continue to have their eligible needs met until their
new service was ready to start.

444 To ensure a contribution towards the savings target within 2014/15 it is
essential that formal consultations commence in January 2014, as this
would enable a decision to be made in June 2014.

There are risks associated with this proposal, particularly around the concerns of
service users, carers and staff and about any delays to the consultation and the
timeframe for completing assessments. A risk assessment has been completed
for this proposal, with a summary attached as Appendix 1. Some of the risks are
only relevant if the Committee were to decide to implement the proposal and
reduce in-house provision following consideration of the results of the
consultation.

Commissioners have been working closely with the city's 5 contracted
independent sector providers of learning disability day services to look at their
ability to potentially increase their capacity to support additional service users,
subject to Committee approval. The 5 day services support the range of need in
the city, from mild learning disability through to moderate, severe and profound
and have some capacity to support additional service users. There are various
factors that could affect the providers’ ability to increase their services by large
volumes, such as whether a building-base is needed and the complexity and
level of service user need(s). With these variables in mind, most providers
estimate that they would require on average of between 6-9 months in order to
acquire a building (if needed), to successfully enable a service user’s transition
(where needed) and to recruit, induct and support staff. There will be a
requirement of these services to work collaboratively with commissioners and
assessment colleagues to establish where additional savings can be made in
their services.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT & CONSULTATION

If Committee agree to the recommendations in this report consultation will take
place with people with learning disabilities who currently use the in-house
learning disability Day Options service, carers, and other stakeholders including
assessment staff and commissioners.

Service users and carers would be informed about the proposal for the future of
the learning disability Day Options service. People would be asked for their views
about the proposal and what they see as important in their current service and
other alternative services. (For example service users and carers have previously
said that friendship groups, varied activities and respite services are important to
them).

Service users and carers will be reassured that they will have an individual

reassessment, and that their assessed needs would continue to be met. This
process will also ensure that their views inform the consultation process.

105



54

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

6.1

7.1

There are several communication channels that are already in place to support
an effective consultation process. These are set out below. Additionally, more
frequent meetings and individual sessions would be offered to service users and
their families. Information would be produced in accessible formats for service
users.

Service users. Each day centre has a regular user meeting which can be used
to gather peoples’ opinions about any proposed change to their services. The
advocacy organisation, Speak Out, use the buildings to hold bigger meetings
which could focus on consultation, and individual keyworkers can support people
to complete questionnaires where appropriate.

Information would be communicated to service users in accessible formats and
independent advocacy would be available to service users. This would include
individual support sessions prior to assessments of need as well as the
facilitation of group meetings.

Families and Carers: learning disability Day Options already has regular carer
meetings which would be scheduled more frequently during any consultation
process and held at a variety of times so that all carers could attend. Feedback
would also be requested via the carer distribution list by questionnaires in
addition to face to face meetings. Feedback would be gathered formally into one
report. The Carers Centre would be engaged with to ensure family Carers have
independent support if they required this. Regular newsletters would be issued

Staff: Formal staff consultation would commence once council decisions have
been made about the future of the service. Prior to formal consultation current
informal staff engagement processes will continue:

» The learning disability Day Options Service Manager meets with individual
staff teams monthly and each service has regular team meetings where
views on proposed changes can be collated.

» Regular newsletters would be issued. Learning disability Day Options has
a Staff Focus Group which meets monthly.

CONCLUSION

In conclusion the recommendation is that Committee agree to consult on the
proposal to reduce the in-house Day Options service, and continue to meet
service users’ eligible needs through alternative provision. A full report on the
outcome of the consultation, stakeholder views, the budget implications, the
implications of the individual assessments and potential impact on staff and
premises would be brought to the June Committee for a decision on future
provision.

FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

Financial Implications:

The 2013/14 direct expenditure budget for learning Disabilities Day Services
is £3.4million, of which £1.9million is allocated to in-house services and

106



7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

£1.5million to the independent sector. This excludes the Day Activities
savings target of £0.4million in 2013/14 and there is a further savings
proposal of £0.3million in the 2014/15 budget strategy, subject to Council
approval in February.

Day activities have been provided for approximately 270 service users during
2013/14 of which approximately 140 used the learning disability Day Options
in-house services and 130 used independent providers. There are currently
124 in-house learning disability Day Options clients.

The 2012/13 unit cost for learning disability Day Options in-house services
was £301 per client per week compared to £239 per day client per week for
services provided in the independent sector. These figures are taken from the
2012/13 Personal Social Services Expenditure and Unit Cost Return
(PSSEX1), published in December 2013 after deducting the cost of support
services, capital costs and employment support services to provide a like for
like comparison to the day services direct expenditure budget.

The reassessments of the current in-house service users need to be
completed in order to determine the cost of re-providing services in the
independent sector where appropriate. This will then enable the resources
required for the in house service to be determined and the net contribution to
the savings targets and timescales identified.

Finance Officer Consulted:  Neil J Smith Date: 8.01.14

Legal Implications:

As described in the body of this Report the Council has a discretionary power
to provide in-house day services to meet assessed need. Further, as also
described the Council must have regard to the personalisation agenda and
individual choice and control in ensuring any service it provides or
commissions complies with these requirements and is person centred.
Savings targets have not been achieved for the last two financial years in this
area of provision and fiscal constraints imposed require further savings.
Therefore when choosing to exercise its power to provide day services the
Council has the dual task of providing a service that meets individuals’
assessed needs within the available funds. Committee is asked to approve a
consultation process over 12 weeks in accordance with national guidance.
Consultation should be undertaken with all interested and potentially affected
persons and take account of the specific needs and circumstances of the
consultees. The outcome of the consultation will be necessary to inform future
decision making on the exercise of the power to provide in-house day
services in the city.

Lawyer Consulted: Sandra O’Brien Date: 8.01.14

107



7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

Equalities Implications:

An Equalities Impact Assessment has been carried out that takes account of
the proposed changes to the learning disability Day Options service and the
impact to service users and carers. This has been updated to incorporate the
proposal set out in the report and is available in Members’ Rooms. This will
be revisited after the outcome of the consultation.

In addition, a separate Equalities Impact Assessment has assessed the
impact of the proposal set out in the report on the independent and voluntary
sector. This should be considered alongside the Needs Assessment
November 2012 and both documents are also available in Members’ Rooms.
This will also be revisited after the outcome of the consultation.

Sustainability Implications:

The Day Activity Review continues to promote effective use of existing
resources with positive implications for building occupancy and for the wider
community,

There is an ongoing Transport review which will enable better understanding
(and therefore, enable improved planning for the future) of how people use
transport across the city. In the interim, some people may have to travel
further to their new day service whilst some people may have less distance to
travel.

The Council’s review of its buildings demonstrates sustainability in practice.
Those buildings that are part of the Workstyles evaluation programme typify
best use of resources; enabling its workforce to work flexible and creatively
whilst minimising the costly expenditure of ongoing maintenance charges
alongside the usual running costs.

Any Other Significant Implications:

None

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:

1. Learning disability Day Options Proposal — Risk Assessment Summary

Documents in Members’ Rooms

1. EIA 1 — Learning disability Day Options

2. EIA 2 — Independent Sector

3. Day Activities Needs Assessment 2012

108



Appendix 1

Learning disability Day Options Proposal — Risk Assessment Summary

Risk Mitigation

1. Users/Carers concerns

The consultation and communications will stress that
eligible needs will continue to be met, with no change
to the criteria. The assessment process and
communications will ensure this is clear. The
consultation process will be clear and fair.
Personalisation continues to offer choice and control.

2. Delay in undertaking
reassessments for service
users

Delay would mean prolonged uncertainty for service
users, carers, staff and providers, and more difficult
decisions at a future date. These risks will be made
clear to decision makers to ensure delay is
minimised. Resources for assessments will be
maintained to ensure assessments are completed in
parallel with the proposed consultation on changes to
provision.

3. Service users moving on
to alternative services to
have their needs met

Commissioners are developing options with
alternative providers as quickly as possible, informed
by data from assessments. Some transitional funding
is agreed for those whose needs are not currently
being met. Service users can ‘move on’ to other
services when ready to do so.

4. Providers ready to meet
service users needs.

Commissioners are in discussion with providers on
their potential capacity and resource issues. Provider
capacity and their potential timetable will be reported
for the Committee’s future decision on in-house
provision.

5. Staff concerns about the
implications of the review

Regular staff forums are held to maintain good lines
of communication. Managers are available for one-to-
one meetings. Full consultation will be held with staff
once a decision on the future for the in-house service
has been made (anticipated at June Committee). HR
are fully involved.

6. Under-occupancy of
remaining bases if a
decision is made to reduce
in-house capacity.

Options for the future of day services premises will be
explored as part of the consultation and presented to
Committee.

7. Financial —
Budget/Savings

Ongoing pressure on Adult Social Care day activities
budget resulting from the delay in implementation.
Achievement of savings is dependent on completion
and outcomes of reassessments, costs of
implementation and timescales/lead-in-time.

8. Legal framework

The consultation will be in accordance with legal
advice and complementary to the separate
assessments of need for individual service users and
carers.

109







ADULT CARE & HEALTH Agenda Item 57

COMMITTEE
Brighton & Hove City Council

Subject: Development of Shared Lives
Date of Meeting: 20" of January 2014
Report of: Executive Director of Adult Social Services
Contact Officer: Name: David Pefia-Charlén Tel: 29-6810

Email: David.pena-charlon@brighton-hove.gov.uk
Ward(s) affected: All

FOR GENERAL RELEASE

1.

1.1

2.1

2.2

3.1.

3.2

PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT

This report focuses on a request to Committee to grant permission to consult on
the potential transfer of the Sussex Partnership Foundation Trust Shared Lives
Scheme (SPFT Shared Lives) to the Brighton & Hove Shared Lives Scheme (In-
House)

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That Committee agrees to a 12 week consultation, with relevant stakeholders,
on the intention to transfer SPFT Shared Lives to the In-House scheme

That Committee agrees that once the consultation process is completed, a
further report including consultation outcomes and an Equalities Impact
Assessment will be presented to Committee for a decision about the potential
transfer.

CONTEXT/ BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Brighton & Hove personalisation agenda aims to give people who access
services greater choice and control. This means transforming the way services
are organized, practiced and delivered. Shared Lives is a model of adult
placements with the required flexibility to offer personalised services following
this agenda. Shared Lives schemes recruit, assess and support carers who offer
accommodation or care and support in their family home to people who are
unable to live independently. As a result, users are given the opportunity to
remain in the community in a family environment, developing their independence
and confidence in daily living. (See Appendix 1: Shared Lives Schemes in the

city)
Shared Lives follows national guidance presented in Putting People First (2007),

The Care and Support White Paper (2012) and Caring for our Future (2012). This
guidance focuses on people’s wellbeing and the quality of the support offered to

111



3.3

3.4

3.4.1

stay independent for as long as possible, ensuring services are of high quality
and safe. The above guidance also stimulates the development of initiatives that
help people share their time, talents and skills with others in their community.

Shared Lives upholds the following points stated by the Adult Social Care
Outcomes in Brighton & Hove City Council:
* Enhancing quality of life for people with care and support needs
» Delaying or reducing the need for care and support
* Ensuring that people have a positive experience of care and Support
* Value for money

Adult Social Care commissioners in the City Council have recently considered
the expansion to Shared Lives across all care groups. This in part has been
driven by a fiscal need to provide a realistic alternative to residential care but also
related to improved outcomes for service user, preventing premature admission
to residential care, promoting choice and independence

SPFT Shared Lives

SPFT Shared Lives is funded by the Mental Health Community Care Budget and
managed by SPFT. It supports sixteen Mental Health service users. The service
is delivered by six carers.

This scheme is a historical arrangement which was inherited by SPFT following
the amalgamation of South Downs NHS Trust in 2006. It was registered with the
Care Quality Commissioning as a Shared Lives provider three years ago.

3.4.2 The scheme is not part of the S.75 Partnership Agreement with SPFT and is not

3.5

3.5.1

under any contractual arrangement. Consequently, the management support
offered to the SPFT Shared Lives scheme is being delivered by SPFT employees
who have additional core duties. The cost of this arrangement is absorbed into
their time and wages. Under this arrangement the Shared Lives project is being
maintained, supervised, and reviewed, and has worker time dedicated. In this
respect the service is being maintained but not developed.

The scheme, therefore, is not contractually framed and has not officially
appointed staff to manage and develop it. This poses a risk for carers and
service users

Financial Impact

Shared Lives costs funded by the Community Care Budget are formed by the
care component of the Shared Lives placement and by a ‘management fee’.

The ‘management fee’ is used by providers towards payments of Shared Lives
Officers’ wages — Shared Lives Officers recruit and support carers / place service
users.

SPFT Shared Lives has no costs towards staff wages due to the scheme
contractual position described above. SPFT Shared Lives, consequently, does
not charge any management fee

Shared Lives In-House currently has a management fee of £53 per person per
week to cover Shared Lives Officers’ wages. The scheme has agreed not
charging any fee for the SPFT Shared Lives 16 service users. This would mean
avoiding an extra cost against the Community Care Budget of £44,096 per year.

112



3.5.2 It is proposed that payment rates to SPFT Shared Lives carers will be maintained

for an interim period of up to two years in order to sustain the progressive
harmonisation with the payment rates sponsored by the In-House scheme

3.6 Staff implications

3.7

41

4.2

5.1

5.2

5.3

6.1

3.6.1 Transfer to the In-House scheme would ensure a contractual framework to
SPFT Shared Lives and provide on-going support to carers and service users
from Shared Lives Officers. It would not involve the move of any staff member
from SPFT Shared Lives to the In-House scheme.

The transfer would ensure the continuity of the service for SPFT Shared Lives
carers and service users, the strengthening of the In-House Scheme and it will
ensure key support for the overall development of Shared Lives in Mental Health

ANALYSIS & CONSIDERATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

This report seeks Committee permission to carry out a Consultation regarding
the transfer of SPFT Shared Lives to the In-House scheme. Creating one Shared
Lives scheme

Analysis and consideration of alternative options will be presented to Committee
in a further report, once the Consultation process has taken place and its
outcomes included

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT & CONSULTATION

This report is presented to Committee members in order to obtain permission to
complete a Consultation about the transfer of SPFT Shared Lives to the In-
House scheme. A Consultation will take place once Committee grants
permission.

Stakeholders to be consulted will include: SPFT Shared Lives Carers, SPFT
Shared Lives Service Users, staff at SPFT Shared Lives (1 x manager and 1 x
Shared Lives officer) and staff at the In-House scheme (1 x manager and 3 x
Shared Lives officer).

During the 12 weeks of consultation, the gathering of relevant quantitative and
qualitative data will take place.

Techniques to be used will include: questionnaires to carers, service users and to
the staff of both the SPFT Shared Lives and the In-House schemes; semi-
structured individual interviews with each carer and each service user; different
focus groups with Shared Lives officers, carers and with service users; feedback
sessions to stakeholders.

CONCLUSION
A Consultation would provide Committee with a clear steer about the potential

transfer of the SPFT scheme. It would also give an opportunity to carers, service
users and stakeholders to become involved in structuring the proposed transfer

113



in the best possible way, making it person centred, effective, efficient and
outcome focused.

7. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:
Financial Implications:

7.1 The total net cost of ‘SPFT Shared Lives’ to the Section 75 Community Care
budget held jointly by BHCC and SPFT is approximately £0.150m per annum.
These placement costs would remain unchanged if the service was transferred.
The actual weekly gross cost of each placement is £431 per week; offset by
housing benefit of £170 per week; client contribution towards utility bills of £70
per week and client contribution following financial assessment (ranging from £0
to £88 per week)

Finance Officer Consulted: Mike Bentley Date: 17/12/13
Legal Implications:

7.2 This Report seeks Committee agreement to undertake a 12 week consultation in
accordance with national guidance. Any consultation must involve potentially
affected and interested parties and accommodate the needs of stakeholders, in
particular the client group. There are no other specific legal or Human Rights Act
implications arising from this report.

Lawyer Consulted: Sandra O’Brien Date:07/01/2014
Equalities Implications:
7.3 An Equalities Impact Assessment will be carried out once the Consultation
process commences
Sustainability Implications:

7.4  None
Any Other Significant Implications:

7.5 None

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:

1. Shared Lives Schemes in the city

114



Documents in Members’ Rooms
None

Background Documents

None

Crime & Disorder Implications:

None

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:

None

Public Health Implications:

None

Corporate / Citywide Implications:

This report aims to obtain Committee approval to initiate a Consultation process.
There are not Corporate/Citywide implications to this request.

115






LTT

Providers

Brighton &
Hove Shared
Lives (In-
House)

Client group
supported

Learning /
Physical
Disabilities

Shared Lives Schemes in Brighton & Hove - Nov 2013

Number of
carers &
service
users
supported

26 carers.
44 service
users

Number of staff

1 x Manager
supporting the
scheme one day
a week

3 x part-time
Shared Lives
Officers.

Fees paid to
carers:

(Care component
+ Housing Benefit
+ Financial
contributions)

Banding
System

Band 1
£370 pw
Band 2
£403 pw
Band3
£459 pw

Cost to the
Community
Care Budget

Banding
system

Band 1
£149.05 pw
Band 2
£185.05 pw
Band 3
£238.05 pw

SPFT Shared
Lives

Mental
Health

6 carers
16 service
users

1 x Shared
Lives Officer
(No contractual
Framework)

Grace Eyre
Foundation

Learning /
Physical
Disabilities &
Mental
Health

22 Carers
34 Service
Users

1 x Manager
(full time)

1x Senior
Shared Lives
Officer (FT)
1x Senior
Shared lives
Officer (PT —
0.25)

1x Shared Lives
Officer (FT)

£401.88 /week

£305.46 pw.

Average
Savings
attained

£17,000 per
person per
year
(compared
to costs of
residential
accommoda
tion)

Management
fee

(Used towards
payments of
Shared Lives
Officers)

£53 per
person per
week

Housing
benefit
component

£177.95 per
week.

It returns to
the
Community
Care Budget

Contractual
Framework

Service Level
agreement

No
management
fee

£170pw — one
exception,
£167.76pw

It returns to
the
Community
Care Budget

No contractual
framework -
Managed by
SPFT

£63.4 per
person per
week

£159.00/week

It does not
return to the
community
budget

Rolling Contract
with ASC

Fixed Subsidy
contract with
Supporting
People due to
expire March
2015 (130 K for
9 Places — Not
included in this
table)







	Agenda
	45 Minutes
	50 Finance Report at TBM7
	Appendix 1 Finance Report TBM7 Adults
	Appendix 1 Finance Report TBM7 S75
	Appendix 1 Finance Report TBM7 Public Health
	Appendix 2 Adults Capital Budget summary
	Appendix 3 Adults Budget Strategy and savings proposals
	Appendix 4 Public Health Budget Strategy and savings proposals
	Appendix 5 Care Bill and ITF

	51 Community Short Term Services - An Update
	52 Integrated Community Equipment Service
	53 Commissioning Grants Prospectus
	54 Adult Social Care Charging Policy
	Enc. 3 for Adult Social Care Charging Policy

	55 Fee Level for Adult Social Care Services 2014-15
	56 Day Activities Review Update
	57 Development of Shared Lives
	Enc. 1 for Development of Shared Lives


